
\\vol -fs01\Data\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\AGENDAS\2019\2019_02_19_ARB_Agenda.docx 

O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  

L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  

w w w . l i n c o l n s h i r e i l . g o v  

  

 

 AGENDA 

 ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
Public Meeting Room, Village Hall 

Tuesday, February 19, 2019 

  7:00 p.m. 
 
Reasonable accommodations or auxiliary aids will be provided to enable persons with disabilities to effectively 
participate in any public meetings. Please contact the Village Administrative Office (847.883.8600) 48 hours in advance 
if you need any special services or accommodations. The Architectural Review Board will not proceed past 10:30 p.m. 

unless a motion is made and approved by a majority of the Architectural Review Board members to extend the meeting 
one-half hour to 11:00 p.m. Any agenda items or other business that are not addressed within this time frame will be 
continued to the next regularly scheduled Architectural Review Board Meeting.  

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
        
1.0 ROLL CALL 
             

 
2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
2.1 Approval of the Minutes of the Architectural Review Board Meeting Held on 

Tuesday, January 15, 2019. 
         
3.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 

  
3.1 Approval of a Minor Amendment to an Existing Special Use Permit for Adlai E. 

Stevenson High School District 125 to Permit Construction of a New Parking Lot, 
1 Stevenson Drive (Adlai E. Stevenson High School District 125).  

 
3.2  Public Hearing regarding Amendments to Chapter 13, Temporary Signs, of Title 

12, Sign Control, of the Village Code to Revise Temporary Sign Regulations in the 
Residential Sign District (Village of Lincolnshire).     

 
3.3 Continued Workshop regarding Text Amendments to Title 12, Sign Control, of the 

Lincolnshire Village Code, to Consolidate and Revise Regulations in the 
Downtown and Corridor Commercial Sign Districts for Permanent Signs (Village of 
Lincolnshire).     

 
 

4.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS   
5.0 NEW BUSINESS      
6.0 CITIZEN COMMENTS 

7.0 ADJOURNMENT 



 

 

 

 

One Olde Ha lf  Day Road  

Lin coln sh i r e, IL 60069  

www.lin coln sh i r ei l .gov  

 

\\vol-fs01\Data\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2019\01_15_2018_Minutes_UNAPPROVED.doc Page 1 

UNAPPROVED Minutes of the regularly scheduled ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 

meeting held on Tuesday, January 15, 2019 in the Public Meeting Room 
of the Village Hall, One Olde Half Day Road, Lincolnshire, IL. 

 
PRESENT: Chair Kennerley and Members Orzeske, McCall, Baskin and 

Santosuosso  
 
ABSENT: Member Tapia and Trustee-Liaison Hancock   
      
ALSO PRESENT: Ben Gilbertson, Assistant Village Manager/Director of Community and 

Economic Development (AVM/CED) and Tonya Zozulya, Planning and 
Development Manager (PDM). 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
     
1.0 ROLL CALL 

The roll was called by Tonya Zozulya, PDM and Chair Kennerley declared a quorum to 

be present. 
           
 
2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
2.1 Approval of the Minutes of the Architectural Review Board (ARB) held on 

Tuesday, December 18, 2018. 
  
 Member Baskin moved and Member Orzeski seconded the motion to approve 

the minutes as written for the December 18, 2018 ARB. The motion passed 
unanimously by voice vote.  

 
 Chair Kennerley stated Member Jensen submitted his resignation from the 

Architectural Review Board.  She noted Member Jensen has participated in 

many developments in Lincolnshire while serving for 3 ½ years with the ARB,  
including Pulte Homes, Camberly Club, The Gardner School, and various design 
and code revisions to the Village Code. She thanked him for his contribution to 
the ARB and the Village of Lincolnshire. 

           
3.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 
  

3.1 Consideration of an Identification Building Wall Sign Design for Wipfli, 100 Tri-    
State International (Prodigy Lighting and Sign). 

 
PDM Zozulya summarized the petition before the board.  Wipfli, an accounting 
and business consulting firm, relocated to the 100 Tri-State building in 2018. 
They are interested in identifying their 33,000 square foot office via a building 
wall sign facing Interstate 94. The only other signs in the Tri-State office 
complex are for CDW on the 75 Tri-State International building and the adjacent 
parking deck. The proposed Wipfli sign and the existing CDW sign will be the 
same white color; the Wipfli sign will have frontlit illumination (the CDW sign has 



 

 

 
 

One Olde Ha lf  Day Road  

Lin coln sh i r e, IL 6 0069  

www.lin coln sh i r ei l .gov  

 

2 
 

E

backlit illumination). She added the proposed Wipfli sign complies with the Tri-
State sign ordinance, but exceeds the underlying sign code requirements in 
regards to sign height and, therefore, needs ARB review and review and 
approval of the Village Board.  
 
Mr. Wayne Palmer of Prodigy Lighting and Sign presented renderings of the 

Wipfli sign indicating the height of the letters is a maximum of 36” and is flush 
mount to the wall. Member McCall questioned the ability to see the sign during 
the daylight, given the light color of the building. Member Orzeske asked about 

ability to see the sign travelling southbound on I-94, as well as cleanliness of the 
sign based on the size of the drain holes.  Mr. Palmer said this should pose no 
problem. Member Baskin also commented on dirt accumulation and noted the 
scale of the sign appears to be consistent with the design of the building. Chair 
Kennerley also commented on the daytime visibility and asked if they would 

consider Wipfli’s corporate blue color. A Wipfli representative stated the company 
is rebranding and their corporate colors may change. PDM Zozulya stated the 

white color is consistent with CDW signage and noted staff believes Bradford 
Allen, owners of the office center, would prefer color consistency for all wall 
signs. 
 
Member Santosuosso moved, seconded by Member McCall, approval to the 

Village Board of the proposed identification building wall sign for Wipfli, located at 
100 Tri-State International, as depicted in a presentation packet prepared by 
Prodigy Lighting & Sign, with the cover letter dated December 26, 2018. 
 
The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 

3.2 Approval of a Minor Amendment to an Existing Special Use Permit for Ascension 
of Our Lord Greek Orthodox Church Regarding Building Dome Material and 
Color Changes, 1207 and 24325 Riverwoods Road (Ascension of Our Lord 
Greek Orthodox Church). 

 
PDM Zozulya reviewed the background on this project, with the most recent 

appearance before the ARB being March 20, 2018 to review a request for 
changes to the building exterior, including the dome color. She noted the 
approved color for the dome is a champagne color made of aluminum material. 
However, due to concerns about maintenance and durability, the petitioner is 
proposing a zinc material for the dome; noting the color of the zinc material will 
be natural (unpainted) gray. 
 
Mr. Bill Kokalias, Axios Architects, presented rendered drawings and 

elevations depicting the proposed gray zinc dome in contrast to the approved 
champagne color aluminum material. He added within 10 years of installation, it 
will become a darker gray due to a surface layer (patina) that will develop.  
Member Baskin noted the fascia of the church is a warmer tone. Mr. Kokalias 

agreed the fascia is a warmer tone as is the champagne color of the previously 
approved aluminum material. He stated the aluminum has issues with 
permeability. Based on consultation with building materials experts, they 



 

 

 
 

One Olde Ha lf  Day Road  

Lin coln sh i r e, IL 6 0069  

www.lin coln sh i r ei l .gov  

 

3 
 

E

recommended going with a noble material such as copper or zinc. He added the 
copper would have been too reflective; therefore, they are proposing the pre-
patina zinc. Chair Kennerley expressed concerns about the mix of colors within 
building materials. Member Baskin agreed, stating they have a potpourri of 

colors and stated had the church considered the gray zinc early on, the choice of 
fascia materials might have been different. He added zinc is a quality material but 
he would have liked to have seen more continuity in the color and material 
schemes of the exterior. 
 
Member Orzeske asked about the ridges in the dome and asked for clarification 
on how it is sealed. Mr. Bill Athenson, representing the Church, said due to the 
dome design, the seams will be welded or soldered. Chair Kennerley inquired 

whether the entire zinc dome will develop patina uniformly or if uneven streaks 
will be noticeable. Mr. Athenson stated the weathering and patina development 
will be consistent.  Member Orzeske asked if the sun-exposed areas of the 

dome will develop patina faster than the dark sides with ultra violet light issues. 
Mr. Athenson said the experts said there will be uniformity in the patina 
development. PDM Zozulya noted a natural copper material was originally 
proposed for the dome; however, it was not pursued due to glare concerns.  
 
Member McCall moved, seconded by Member Orzeske, to approve a minor 

amendment to the Ascension of Our Lord Greek Orthodox Church Special Use to 
permit a natural gray zinc dome material for the church located at 1207 and 
243245 Riverwoods Road, as presented in the presentation packet dated 
December 27, 2018. 
 
Motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 

 
4.0   UNFINISHED BUSINESS (None)  

  
5.0   NEW BUSINESS (None) 
   
6.0   CITIZEN COMMENTS (None) 

 
7.0   ADJOURNMENT 
   

There being no further business, Chairman Kennerley adjourned the meeting 

at 7:36 p.m. 
 
 

  Respectfully Submitted, 
  Carol Lustig  
  Administrative Assistant, Community & Economic Development Department  
 
 

 



Agenda Item 

3.1 ARB 

 REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Architectural Review Board 

February 19, 2019 

Subject: Adlai E. Stevenson High School - 1 Stevenson Drive 

Action Requested: Approval of a Minor Amendment to a Special Use to Permit 
Construction of a New Parking Lot  

Petitioner:  Adlai E. Stevenson High School District 125 

Originated By/Contact: Tonya Zozulya, Planning & Development Manager 

Advisory Board Review: Architectural Review Board 

Background: 

 Eriksson Engineering Associates, the petitioner representing Adlai E. Stevenson School
District 125 (Stevenson), seeks to construct a new parking lot on the school property at 1
Stevenson Drive, as shown on Figure 1
and attached location map.  

 The 76.6-acre Adlai E. Stevenson High
School property was developed in 1963
in unincorporated Lake County and
annexed into the Village in two phases in
1981 and 1992. It received Special Use
and R1 zoning approvals in 1992 by
Ordinance #92-1226-04. In 2017, the
residential property at 16139 W. Port
Clinton Road was annexed to the Village
for school use and is covered by the
Special Use Ordinance.

 The school has had over 10 building
additions since it was originally
constructed. The most recent 56,800-
square-foot addition was approved by the
Village in 2017 to accommodate a
projected enrollment growth to over
4,500 students by 2024 as a major
amendment to Stevenson’s Special Use
by Ordinance #17-3745-173.

Project Overview & Staff Comments: 

 The proposed 100-car parking lot will
replace the existing tennis courts, which

Figure 1: Location Map



Agenda Item 

3.1 ARB 

are no longer in use, north of the newest building addition (see attached Document 2). 

 The new lot would only be accessed internally from the school property, with no direct access
from adjacent properties.

 The proposed parking meets all setback, dimensional, and landscaping requirements. ADA
requirements will also be met. No tree removals are required for this project.

 There are six new parking lot light poles with nine fixtures proposed within landscape islands
to match existing pole design. The photometric plan indicates lighting intensity at the property
line meets code.

Approval Process:  

The Architectural Review Board has the final authority to review and approve this project as a 
minor amendment to Stevenson’s Special Use permit.  

Motion: 

The Architectural Review Board moves to approve a minor amendment to the existing Special 
Use to permit a new parking lot for Adlai E. Stevenson High School District 125, as presented in 
the packet submitted by Eriksson Engineering Associates, date stamped received February 7, 
2019, and further subject to. . . 

{Insert any additional conditions or modification desired by the Architectural Review Board} 

Reports and Documents Attached: 

 Document 1: Location Map.

 Document 2: Petitioner’s cover letter and presentation packet, prepared by Eriksson
Engineering Associates, date stamped received February 7, 2019.

Meeting History 

Architectural Review Board (current): February 19, 2019 



DOCUMENT 1



Adlai E. Stevenson High School 

STEV ENSON HIGH SCHOOL • TWO STEV ENSON DRIV E • LINCOLNSHIRE • IL • 60069 • FAX: 847-634-

0239 

January 29, 2019 

Chairperson Cherise Kennerley 
Architectural Review Board 

One Olde Half Day 
Lincolnshire, IL  60069 

Dear Chairperson Kennerley, 

Adlai E. Stevenson HS District 125 requests that the Village of Lincolnshire 
Architectural Review Board review the proposed layout, lighting and landscaping of a 
new 100 space parking lot to be constructed during the summer of 2019.  

This 100-space parking lot is to be constructed generally within the footprint of the 

existing tennis court pavement just north of Stevenson Drive and immediately north 
of the existing Parking Lot D. The lot will have one inbound only driveway and one 
two-way driveway onto Stevenson drive. The inbound only lane will align with the 

north south leg of Stevenson Drive along the eastern perimeter of the campus. The 
two-way driveway will align with one of the driveways leading into Parking Lot D. 

All spaces and driveways meet with Village and ADA dimensional standards.  

Construction will also include installation of 6 light poles, with a total of 9 fixtures (3 

poles with double fixtures and 3 poles with single fixtures) all internal to the parking 
lot, and contained within proposed islands.  There will be no perimeter lights. There 

will be no spill of light onto adjacent properties based upon a photometric analysis of 
the layout. The proposed light poles match those that are installed within the adjacent 
parking lot.   

Also included will be landscaping in keeping with Village standards. There will be 10 

internal island trees, 6 perimeter trees and numerous internal and perimeter shrubs. 
There should be no removal of any existing trees along the eastern perimeter of the 
site for construction of the parking lot. 

If you have any questions or concern, please feel free to contact me at (847) 415-

4117. 

Sincerely, 

Sean P. Carney 

ASSISTANT 
SUPERINTENDENT FOR 
BUSINESS 

Sean Carney 
scarney@d125.org 
847-415-4117 

DIRECTOR’S ASSISTANT 

Lorena Garcia 
lgarcia@d125.org 
847-415-4119 

“SUCCESS FOR 
EVERY STUDENT” 

DOCUMENT 2



GENERAL NOTES

LEGEND

GEOMETRY NOTES



LANDSCAPE
PLAN &

DETAILS

Reserved for Seal:

DescriptionDateNo.

Date:

Project No.Checked By:

Design By:

Sheet Title:

Sheet No:

Expiration Date:

145 COMMERCE DRIVE, SUITE A
GRAYSLAKE, ILLINOIS 60030

phone (847) 223-4804
fax (847) 223-4864

email INFO@EEA-LTD.COM

ASSOCIATES, LTD.
ENGINEERING

ERIKSSON

Professional Design Firm
License No. 184-003220

Expires: 04/30/2019

ERIKSSON ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, LTD., 2016C  

































A
D

L
A

I 
E

 S
T

E
V

E
N

S
O

N
 H

S
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T

 A
N

D
A

T
H

L
E

T
IC

 F
IE

L
D

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

L100

PLANT SCHEDULE

SITE MATERIALS SCHEDULE

LANDSCAPE NOTES

TREE PLANTING DETAIL1

SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL2

ANNUAL, PERENNIAL, & GROUNDCOVER DETAIL3





A

B

5.6

0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.2

0.2 0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

1.7

1.6

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.2

1.0

0.8

2.2

2.3

2.2

2.2

2.2

2.0

2.0

2.1

2.0

1.9

1.7

1.3

0.9

2.7

2.8

2.6

2.6

2.9

3.0

2.9

2.6

2.4

2.4

2.6

2.8

2.7

2.2

1.6

1.1

3.3

3.1

2.8

2.9

3.2

3.6

3.5

2.8

2.5

2.5

2.8

3.4

3.4

2.4

1.6

1.1

0.8

4.3

3.6

3.6

4.4

5.0

3.8

3.4

3.4

3.9

5.2

5.1

3.4

2.2

1.7

1.1

0.7

3.7

3.7

3.1

3.1

3.8

4.4

4.1

3.2

2.6

2.6

3.0

3.5

3.4

2.5

1.7

1.1

0.8

0.6

3.4

3.0

2.8

2.8

3.1

3.6

3.4

2.8

2.5

2.5

2.6

2.9

2.8

2.2

1.6

1.1

0.8

0.5

2.4

2.5

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.6

2.6

2.4

2.2

2.1

2.2

2.1

2.0

1.7

1.3

1.0

0.7

0.5

1.8

1.9

2.0

2.1

2.1

2.0

2.0

2.0

1.9

1.8

1.7

1.6

1.4

1.3

1.1

0.8

0.6

0.4

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.3

1.2

1.0

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.8

0.9

1.0

1.0

1.0

0.9

0.9

0.9

1.0

0.9

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.9

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.2

1.1

1.1

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.1

1.0

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.3

1.5

1.6

1.8

1.8

1.8

1.7

1.7

1.7

1.6

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.1

0.8

0.5

0.4

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.2

2.2

2.2

2.2

2.1

1.9

1.9

2.0

2.0

1.9

1.7

1.3

0.9

0.6

0.4

2.6

2.5

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.8

2.7

2.4

2.1

2.1

2.2

2.5

2.5

2.0

1.4

1.0

0.6

0.4

2.9

2.5

2.2

2.2

2.4

3.0

2.9

2.2

1.9

1.9

2.1

2.6

1.9

1.3

0.9

0.6

1.7

1.4

1.3

1.6

2.0

1.9

1.4

1.1

1.0

1.2

1.5

1.7

1.2

0.7

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.8

1.0

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.0

1.0

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.0

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.5

0.7

0.9

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.5

1.6

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.6

0.8

1.2

1.6

1.8

1.9

2.1

2.2

0.7

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.7

0.9

1.3

1.9

2.5

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.6

1.0

1.5

2.1

3.0

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.9

1.4

1.8

2.7

4.3

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.8

1.2

1.5

2.4

3.5

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.7

1.0

1.5

2.1

2.8

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.6

0.9

1.3

1.8

2.1

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.6

0.8

1.1

1.5

1.6

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.5

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.0

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.8

0.9

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.2

1.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.5

0.7

1.1

1.5

1.8

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.5

0.7

1.2

1.7

2.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.5

0.7

1.1

1.6

2.3

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.7

1.0

1.6

1.1

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

Statistics

Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min

Calc Zone Entire Area 1.1 fc 5.6 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A

Calc Zone Parking Area 1.6 fc 5.6 fc 0.2 fc 28.0:1 8.0:1

Schedule

Symbol Label Quantity Manufacturer Catalog Number Description Lamp
Number

Lamps
Filename

Lumens Per

Lamp

Light Loss

Factor
Wattage

3 Lithonia Lighting DSX0 LED P4 40K T4M MVOLT HS DSX0 LED P4 40K T4M MVOLT with

houseside shield

LED 1 DSX0_LED_P4_40K_T

4M_MVOLT_HS.ies

8020 0.95 92

3 Lithonia Lighting DSX0 LED P4 40K T4M MVOLT DSX0 LED P4 40K T4M MVOLT LED 1 DSX0_LED_P4_40K_T

4M_MVOLT.ies

10335 0.95 184

Luminaire Locations

No. Label X Y Z

Location

MH Orientation Tilt

1 A 204.70 165.30 22.50 20.00 270.00 0.00

2 A 205.20 102.30 22.50 20.00 270.00 0.00

3 A 205.40 47.30 22.50 20.00 270.00 0.00

3 B 61.80 45.90 22.50 20.00 90.00 0.00

4 B 61.80 100.90 22.50 20.00 90.00 0.00

5 B 59.50 163.80 22.50 20.00 90.00 0.00

RIGID STEEL (GALV.) W/ BUSHING

#6(CU) GROUND WIRE

GROUND LUG - TERMINATE ALL 
CONDUITS WITH GROUNDING BUSHINGS 
BONDED TO GROUND LUG.

FINISH PAVING OR GRADE

BOLT CIRCLE PER MANUFACTURER 
SPECS W/ANCHOR BOLTS MIN 
LENGTH OF 36" X 3/4" (TYP)

PVC TO RIGID STEEL COUPLING 
SIZE AS REQUIRED - TYPICAL

10'-0" LONG COPPER CLAD 
GROUND ROD

2'-6" ABOVE GRADE UNLESS 
NOTED OTHERWISE

GROUT AS REQUIRED W/ NON 
SHRINK GROUT

1" CHAMFER

ACCESS OPENING W/COVER

BASE COVER TO MATCH 
POLE FINISH

PVC SCHEDULE 80 CONDUIT 
MINIMUM 30" DEEP - TYPICAL)

RIGID STEEL CONDUIT (GALV.) TYP.

4000 PSI CONCRETE (24" 
DIAMETER ROUND BASE)

WELD TYP.

#3 HORIZONTAL TIES, 12" O.C.(TYPICAL)

(5) #5 VERTICAL REINFORCING 
STEEL BARS - TYPICAL

LIGHTING FIXTURE TYPE "A" -SINGLE HEAD , "B" -DOUBLE HEAD

4" SQUARE STRAIGHT BLACK ALUMINUM 
POLE

M
A

X
. 2

0 
F

T
.

  8
'-

0
"

PROVIDE IN LINE FUSE WITH FUSE 
COVERS 

1. UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTING WIRING SHALL BE 
# 10 AWG, COPPER.  ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTING WIRING SHALL BE ROUTED 
IN PVC SCHEDULE 40 CONDUIT, MINIMUM 36" BELOW GRADE.  VERIFY 
EXACT LOCATION OF ALL OUTDOOR LIGHTING WITH GENERAL 
CONTRACTOR.

2. ALL PENETRATIONS THROUGH BUILDING SHALL BE SEALED WATER 
TIGHT PER ARCHITECTS REQUIREMENTS. SECURELY MOUNT CONDUIT 
TO WALL AS REQUIRED.

3. PROVIDE ALL TRENCHING, AND BACKFILL AS REQUIRED.  BACKFILL PER 
ARCHITECTS REQUIREMENTS, SURFACE SUITABLE FOR FINAL 
PAVEMENT LAYER.  FINAL PAVEMENT BY OTHERS, THIS CONTRACTOR 
TO COORDINATE WORK WITH ALL OTHER TRADES PRIOR TO ANY 
EXCAVATION.

4. SITE LIGHTING PLAN  (PHOTOMETRICS AND DESIGN VERIFICATION) 
SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE  AUTHORITY PRIOR TO START OF WORK.

5. MINIMUM REQUIREMENT PER POLE LOCATION SHALL BE (3) SETS OF  (2) 
10AWG + GROUND CABLE TYPE LABELED EITHER THHN OR THWN.  
LEAVE 5' OF COILED TAPED WIRE NEATLY TRIMMED AND LABELED IN 
LIGHT FIXTURE HAND HOLE. 

6. EACH HEAD OF THE FIXTURE MUST BE WIRED DOWN TO THE HANDHOLE 
INDEPENDENTLY. 

7. ALL LIGHTING CIRCUITS MUST BE PRESENT AT THE BASE OF EACH POLE 
SO THAT WIRING CAN BE ACCESSED FOR FUTURE  CIRCUIT 
MODIFICATION/ REWIRING AS REQUIRED. 

8. PHOTOCELL, CONTACTORS, RELAYS, TIME/CLOCK SHALL BE PROVIDED 
FOR A COMPLETE LIGHTING CONTROL INSTALLATION.  COORDINATE 
WITH BUILDING AUTOMATION SYSTEM'S CONTRACTOR FOR ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION.  THREE SETS OF SPARE CONTACTOR/RELAYS SHALL BE 
PROVIDED PER ZONE AS MINIMUM.

SITE LIGHTING GENERAL NOTES:

G-Z

G-Y

H-VH-U

G-X

ELECTRICAL

6046B

NEW PARKING LOT

ELECTRICAL 
6046B

A

A

A

B

B

B

TOTAL LOAD 1200WATTS @ 277V - 3.0AMP. 
2" PVC CONDUIT WITH #6 WIRES BACK TO EAST BUILDING ELECTRICAL ROOM 6046B LIGHTING PANEL-LPHC1B. 
LIGHTING SHALL BE CONTROL BY BUILDING AUTOMATION SYSTEM.
LIGHT FIXTURES SHALL BE EQUIPPED WITH 1/3 STEP DIMMING, MOTION AND DAYLIGHT SENSOR BUILT IN THE 
FIXTURE.
  

PROVIDE AND INSTALL 277V/120V STEP DOWN TRANSFORMER IN NEMA3R ELECTRICAL CABINET FOR CAMERA POWER ON 
THE LIGHTING POLE. 
PROVIDE 20A/1P BREAKER IN LIGTING PANEL (UNSWITCHED) @ 277V/1P FROM EAST BUILDING ELECTRICAL ROOM 6046B 
LIGHTING PANEL-LPHC1B.
CAMERA SIGNAL CABLE TO BE FIBEROPTIC TYPE. 
120V POWER SHALL BE EXTENDED TO EACH POLE WITH CAMERA THRU THE 2" PVC CONDUIT WITH FIBER OPTIC CABLING 
TO POWER THE CAMERAS.
2" PVC CONDUIT BACK TO BUILDING FOR CAMERA WIRING 

A B C D

KEY PLAN

E F G H

J

K

L M N

Q

P

AA

ADMIN

NORTH

Project Number:

Drawn By:

Sheet:

W
ig

h
t 
&

 C
o
. 
©

  
C

o
p
y
ri
g
h
t 
2
0
1
8
 A

ll 
ri
g
h
ts

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
d
. 
N

o
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
s
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
y
 b

e
 r

e
p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
, 
s
to

re
d
, 
o
r 

tr
a
n
s
m

it
te

d
 i
n
 a

n
y
 f
o
rm

 o
r 

b
y
 a

n
y
 m

e
a
n
s
, 
e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

, 
m

e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l,
 p

h
o
to

c
o
p
y
in

g
, 
re

c
o
rd

in
g
 o

r 
o
th

e
rw

is
e
, 
w

it
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 p

ri
o
r 

w
ri
tt
e
n
 c

o
n
s
e
n
t 
o
f 
W

ig
h
t 
&

C
o
.

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Wight & Company
wightco.com

2500 North Frontage Road
Darien, IL 60561

P 630.969.7000
F 630.969.7979

C
:\
U

s
e

rs
\r

ta
n

d
a
g

\D
o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

\R
e
v
it
\1

0
-5

4
8

7
-1

2
_

A
E

S
H

S
 E

A
S

T
 B

ld
g
_

M
E

P
-F

P
_

2
0

1
8
_

C
e

n
tr

a
l_

rt
a

n
d
a

g
@

w
ig

h
tc

o
.c

o
m

.r
v
t

1
2

/5
/2

0
1
8

 3
:3

0
:3

6
 P

M

AESHS SUMMER 2019

1 STEVENSON DRIVE
LINCOLNSHIRE, IL 60069

SITE LIGHTING

5487-12

Author

E1.0

ADLAI E. STEVENSON HIGH

SCHOOL - DISTRICT 125

N.T.S.
2

PARKING LOT LIGHTING POLE BASE DETAIL

N
SCALE:  1/16" = 1'-0"

3
EXISTING ELECTRICAL ROOM - LEVEL 01 - AREA Q

N.T.S.
4

SITE REFERENCE PLAN

N
SCALE:  1" = 20'-0"

1
Site Plan

REV ISSUE DATE

ISSUED FOR BID 12.05.2018



GENERAL NOTES

LEGEND

SOIL EROSION &
SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

LEGEND

INTENDED SEQUENCE OF
MAJOR SEDIMENT AND

EROSION CONTROL
MEASURES











GENERAL NOTES

LEGEND

UTILITY NOTES

STRUCTURE NOTES



GENERAL NOTES

LEGEND

DEMOLITION NOTES

DEMOLITION LEGEND



GENERAL NOTES

GRADING NOTES

PAVING & SURFACE
 LEGEND

LEGEND



 

Agenda Item 

   3.2 ARB 

 

 
V:\CED\Administration\Code_Revisions\SIGN 
ORDINANCE\2019PotentialAmend\2_19_19_ARB_PH\2019_02_19_ARB_Residential_Real_Estate_Signs.docx 

 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Architectural Review Board   
February 19, 2019 

 
Subject:  Temporary Signs in the Residential Sign District  

 

Action Requested: Public Hearing Regarding Amendments to Chapter 13 of Title 12 
(Signs) of the Lincolnshire Village Code Regarding Permitted 
Temporary Sign Display Period in the Residential Sign District  
  

Petitioner:  Village of Lincolnshire 
 

Originated 
By/Contact: 

Ben Gilbertson, Assistant Village Manager/CED Director 
Tonya Zozulya, Planning & Development Manager 
 

Referred To:  Architectural Review Board 
 

 
Background: 

 In September and November 2017, Village staff presented to the Village Board (Board) 
potential amendments to Title 12 (Signs) of the Lincolnshire Village Code. The amendments 
were intended to cover a number of aspects to permanent and temporary signs across 
multiple sign districts (see attached Document 1). The Residential Sign District is depicted in 
a light yellow color.  
 

 The intent of the new code was to be content neutral and treat all types of temporary signs in 
each sign district the same per a U.S. Supreme Court decision (2015 Reed v. Town of Gilbert), 
regardless of their intent or message. The Village Board’s direction from the 2017 preliminary 
evaluation meetings regarding certain restrictions for real estate signs (size and number) 
influenced the Architectural Review Board’s (ARB) consideration of other temporary signs in 
that district (e.g., garage sale signs). Based on the Reed v. Town of Gilbert decision, real 
estate signs cannot have different regulations (including the display time period) than other 
temporary signs in the same sign district. After the public hearing and discussion over several 
meetings, the ARB recommended the current regulations, which the Village Board ultimately 
approved. In November 2018, after a total of four presentations to the Board and four 
presentations to the ARB, the Board approved the new code (see attached Document 2).  
 

 Following approval of the amendments, staff sent notifications to local businesses, residents, 
and real estate brokers regarding the new requirements. Staff received concerns from several 
Lincolnshire, Lake Forest, and Lake Bluff residential real estate brokers. Brokers indicated the 
new size requirements of 2 sq. ft. in area and 4’ in height for internal streets was too small; 
impairs sign legibility (especially when snow covered); and requires investment in new signs 
and recurrent sign installation and removal (see attached Document 5). The approved size 
requirements for these types of signs were modeled after Lake Forest and Lake Bluff codes 
as a result of Village Board direction and the ARB’s favorable recommendation.  

 

 A second concern raised by real estate professionals was the limitation on display duration of 
real estate signs. The current temporary sign regulations provide for a maximum display of 91 



 

Agenda Item 

   3.2 ARB 

 

 
V:\CED\Administration\Code_Revisions\SIGN 
ORDINANCE\2019PotentialAmend\2_19_19_ARB_PH\2019_02_19_ARB_Residential_Real_Estate_Signs.docx 

days in the Residential Sign District. Realtors stated the short duration and non-continuous 
nature of the limitations adds to costs of hiring a sign company to install and remove signs. 
The brokers indicated the average current market time in Lincolnshire is 268 days, which 
means a sign would need to be installed three times and taken down twice (based on the 91-
day maximum timeframe for temporary signs).  

 

 On January 14, 2019, the Village Board discussed the above concerns and heard from local 
brokers. At the conclusion of the meeting, it was the Board’s consensus that the new 
temporary sign size requirements in the Residential Sign District should remain. However, the 
Board determined the display period should be amended for all temporary signs in that sign 
district to make it non-interrupted. The Board also wanted to ensure temporary signs remain 
in good condition and be replaced after one year. The Board referred this amendment to the 
ARB for a public hearing and recommendation (see attached Document 4).   

 
Public Hearing - Temporary Sign Display Period in Residential Sign District  

 The current code states the maximum display period for all temporary signs in the Residential 
Sign District (including real estate signs) is 91 days per each period, with no limit on the 
number of display periods until 5 days after the conclusion of an event or property sale/lease. 
After each 91-day display, signs must be taken down for 14 days before being re-installed 
again for another 91 days (if needed). No permit is required prior to installation. The previous 
code limited the display of temporary promotional signs in the Residential Sign District to 90 
days per year and allowed real estate signs to have an uninterrupted display until property 
sale/rent. A permit was required for all types of temporary signs (e.g., promotional, garage 
sale) but not for real estate signs.  
 

 The proposed display period change would permit all temporary signs in the Residential Sign 
District to be installed and continuously displayed until 5 days after the conclusion of an event, 
project, or product sale, which may be more than a year or indefinite. For example, an 
organization may choose to conduct an ongoing membership drive and display a temporary 
sign with no end point or a property owner may have a property marketed for years before it 
is sold or leased. This unlimited duration could cause temporary signs to turn into de facto 
permanent signs. As proposed, the code would require signs that have been displayed for 
more than a year to be replaced if additional display time is needed to ensure they remain in 
good condition.  
 
Staff requests the ARB determine if signs should be required to be removed entirely 
within a certain period of time to maintain a temporary nature of such signs in the 
Residential Sign District. As a reminder, temporary signs in the Downtown and Commercial 
Sign Districts can be displayed for up to 120 days per year, and signs in the Office/Industrial 
Sign District can be displayed for up to 91 days a year.  
 

 A notice of the Public Hearing was published in the February 1, 2019 Daily Herald, as required 
by the Village Code.  
 

 Attached is a draft ordinance, prepared by the Village Attorney, regarding the proposed 
amendments (see Document 3).    

 
 
 



 

Agenda Item 

   3.2 ARB 

 

 
V:\CED\Administration\Code_Revisions\SIGN 
ORDINANCE\2019PotentialAmend\2_19_19_ARB_PH\2019_02_19_ARB_Residential_Real_Estate_Signs.docx 

Motion: 
Having conducted and concluded a Public Hearing on February 19, 2019, the Architectural 
Review Board moves to approve and recommend amendments to Title 12 of the Lincolnshire 
Village Code regarding the permitted display period for temporary signs in the Residential Sign 
District, as presented in the draft Sign Ordinance prepared by the Village Attorney. 

 
{and further subject to…} 

 
Reports and Documents Attached: 

 Document 1: Sign District map.  

 Document 2: Current Chapter 13, Temporary Signs.  

 Document 3: Draft ordinance amending Chapter 13 regarding the permitted sign 
display period in the Residential Sign District.  

 Document 4: January 14, 2019 Committee of the Whole meeting minutes.  

 Document 5: Email correspondence from local real estate brokers. 
 
 

Meeting History 

Committee of the Whole - Preliminary Evaluation (initial) September 11, 2017 

Committee of the Whole - Preliminary Evaluation (continued) November 13, 2017 

Architectural Review Board - Public Hearing January 16, 2018 

Architectural Review Board (continued) March 20, 2018 

Architectural Review Board (continued) May 31, 2018 

Architectural Review Board (continued) September 4, 2018 

Committee of the Whole - First Reading October 22, 2018 

Village Board - Second Reading / Adoption November 12, 2018 

Committee of the Whole  January 14, 2019 

Architectural Review Board (current) February 19, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SIGN DISTRICT MAP 

5 

Sign District Map 

Residential, Downtown, Corridor Commercial & 

Office/Industrial Sign Districts - No changes 

DOCUMENT 1



CHAPTER 13

TEMPORARY SIGNS

SECTION:

12-13-1 TEMPORARY SIGNS

A. General Regulations for all Temporary Signs

1. Except as otherwise permitted herein, signs shall be located
entirely on property owned or controlled by the owner of the sign
and shall be placed a minimum of five (5) feet from the property
line.

2. Off-premise temporary signs for owners or tenants in unified
commercial/mixed-use developments granted a Planned Unit
Development designation shall be permitted, regardless of property
ownership, so long as the sign is located within the boundaries of
the Planned Unit Development.

3. Up to twenty-four (24) off-premises institutional signs are permitted,
provided they are no larger than four (4) square feet in area, no
taller than three (3) feet, and are displayed for no longer than
twelve (12) days each display period. The display of an off-
premises institutional sign shall not result in the diminution of the
annual display period otherwise permitted for temporary signs on a
given property.

4. No temporary sign may be illuminated.

5. No exposed framing shall be visible on temporary signs. All
temporary signs must remain in good condition during the display
period. Throughout the display period, corrective action must be
taken immediately should there be any problems with the
appearance, condition or maintenance of the sign and/or support
hardware. Signs in disrepair are subject to removal by the Village.

6. No temporary sign shall extend over or into any street, nor any
sidewalk, or other public thoroughfare or right of way a distance
greater than four (4) inches from the wall to which it is attached,
and shall not be placed or project over any wall opening capable of
ingress and egress. No temporary sign shall be erected so as to
prevent free ingress to or egress from any door, window or fire
escape, nor shall any such sign be attached to any standpipe.

DOCUMENT 2 - EXISTING CODE



7. Temporary signs shall not be attached to fences, trees, utility poles
or permanent signs (except temporary signs may be attached to
permanent signs when there is a change of ownership or
occupancy).

8. Temporary signs shall not be placed in a position that will obstruct
or impair vision or traffic or in any way or manner create a hazard
or disturbance to the health and welfare of the general public.

9. Multiple temporary signs located on the same frontage and the
same zoning parcel in the Downtown and Corridor Commercial
Sign Districts must be separated by 50 feet.

10. All temporary signs shall be removed within five (5) business days
following the earlier to occur between (a) the expiration of the
applicable display limitation, or (b) the subject of the sign being
complete, expired, terminated or abandoned.

11. Any violation of the conditions and restrictions of this section shall
result in the loss of forty-five (45) days from the annual maximum
duration for the display of a temporary sign. Such penalty shall toll
over to the next calendar year if less than 45 days remain in the
applicable limitation.

B. Regulations by Sign District

1. Temporary freestanding signs, other than banners, are permitted in
compliance with the regulations of Tables I and 2 of this Section. For
signs in the Residential Sign District, the regulations are divided
between signs placed on private property in a yard which does or does
not have frontage on an arterial road, including Riverwoods Road and
Half Day Road (Illinois Route 22). For properties located in the
Residential Sign District with frontage on an arterial road, temporary
freestanding signs may be placed on either the front yard or corner
side yard, but not both.



Table I

Sign District Area Height Duration

Residential 91 Days per display period;
(arterial) 16 sq. ft. 6 ft.

Minimum gap of 14 days

Residential 91 Days per display period;
(non-arterial) 2 sq. ft. 4 ft.

Minimum gap of 14 days

120 days per year in total; Not
Downtown 24 sq. ft. 6 ft. more than 6 separate times;

Minimum gap of 7 days

120 days per year in total; NotCorridor
24 sq. ft. 6 ft. more than 6 separate times;Commercial

Minimum gap of 7 days

Office/Industrial 20 sq. ft. 6 ft. 91 days per year in total

Table 2

#of Signs per
Sign District Materials Zoning Lot Permit?

Residential Corrugated Plastic,
1 No(arterial) Wood or Metal

Residential Corrugated Plastic,
1 No(non-arterial) Wood or Metal

Vinyl, Balloons,
Downtown Corrugated Plastic, 2 per

YesfrontageWood_or_Metal

Vinyl, Balloons,Corridor 2 per
YesCommercial Corrugated Plastic,

frontageWood_or_Metal

Vinyl, Balloons,
1 perOffice/Industrial Corrugated Plastic,

frontage Yes
Wood_or_Metal



2. Temporary signs affixed to the inside of windows are permitted, without
a permit, in compliance with the regulations of Tables 3 and 4 of this
Section.

Table 3

Sign District Area Height Duration

No greater
than 25% Limited to 91 days per year in total; Not

Downtown of the Only the more than 6 separate times;
window First Floor Minimum gap of 14 days
a reaa

No greater

r
than 25% Limited to 91 days per year in total; Not

orrio of the Only the more than 6 separate times;
Commercial . .window First Floor Minimum gap of 14 days

area

a “Window area” is defined as a continuous surface comprised of one (1) or more
window panes until divided by an architectural or structural element. Mullions are not
considered an element that divides a window area. A “window pane” is each discrete
piece of glass which is mounted in its own frame.

Table 4

Sign District Placement Materials Copy Area

Plastic Decals
. . 2 from the edge of

Downtown Interior Corrugated Plastic any window pane
Wood or Metal

. Plastic Decals
Corridor . . 2 from the edge of

. Interior Corrugated Plastic
Commercial any window pane

Wood or Metal



3. Temporary signs attached to Village-owned poles and parking lot light
poles are permitted to be erected by the owner of such pole in
compliance with the regulations of Tables 5 and 6 of this Section.

Table 5

Sign District Area Height Duration

The face of the sign

Downtown 8 sq. ft.
may not exceed 15 91 days per year in total; Not

feet nor be lower more than 6 separate times;

than 8 feet Minimum gap of 14 days

The face of the sign
Corridor may not exceedl5 91 days per year in total; Not

Commercial 8 sq. ft.
feet nor be lower more than 6 separate times;

than 8 feet Minimum gap of 14 days

Table 6

Sign District Materials Copy Area Permit?

Downtown Plastic, Canvas
2” from the edge of

Yesany_window_pane

Corridor
Plastic Canvas

2” from the edge of
Commercial any window pane

Yes



4. Temporary freestanding banner signs are permitted in compliance with
the regulations of Tables 7 and 8 of this Section. Banners may not be
affixed or attached to a wall.

Table 7

Sign District Area Height Duration

Residential
16 ft 6 ft

14 Days per display period;
(arterial) sq. Minimum gap of 14 days

Residential
2 ft 4 ft

14 Days per display period;
(non-arterial) sq. .

. Minimum gap of 14 days

91 days per year in total; Not
more than 14 days for each

Downtown 24 sq. ft. 6 ft. . .

display period; Minimum gap
of 14 days

91 days per year in total; Not
Corridor more than 14 days for each

. 24sq.ft. 6ft. . .

Commercial display period; Minimum gap
of 14 days

Office/Industrial 20 sq. ft. 6 ft. 91 days per year in total

Table 8

# of Signs per
Sign District Materials Zoning Lot Permit?

Residential Vinyl I Yes

. Iper
Downtown Vinyl Yes

frontage

Corridor . 1 per
. Vinyl Yes

Commercial frontage

Office/Industrial Vinyl
1 per Yes

frontage

5. The duration for the display period for temporary freestanding signs
and temporary banner signs shall not be cumulative, but shall be
measured concurrently.

4812-0579-1 561, v. 6



CHAPTER 13 

TEMPORARY SIGNS 

SECTION: 

12-13-1  TEMPORARY SIGNS

A. General Regulations for all Temporary Signs

1. Except as otherwise permitted herein, signs shall be located entirely on

property owned or controlled by the owner of the sign and shall be placed a

minimum of five (5) feet from the property line.

2. Off-premise temporary signs for owners or tenants in unified

commercial/mixed-use developments granted a Planned Unit Development

designation shall be permitted, regardless of property ownership, so long as

the sign is located within the boundaries of the Planned Unit Development.

3. Up to twenty-four (24) off-premises institutional signs are permitted,

provided they are no larger than four (4) square feet in area, no taller than

three (3) feet, and are displayed for no longer than twelve (12) days each

display period.  The display of an off-premises institutional sign shall not

result in the diminution of the annual display period otherwise permitted for

temporary signs on a given property.

4. No temporary sign may be illuminated.

5. No exposed framing shall be visible on temporary signs. All temporary

signs must remain in good condition during the display period. Throughout

the display period, corrective action must be taken immediately should there

be any problems with the appearance, condition or maintenance of the sign

and/or support hardware.   Signs in disrepair are subject to removal by the

Village.

6. No temporary sign shall extend over or into any street, nor any sidewalk, or

other public thoroughfare or right of way a distance greater than four (4)

inches from the wall to which it is attached, and shall not be placed or

project over any wall opening capable of ingress and egress. No temporary

sign shall be erected so as to prevent free ingress to or egress from any door,

window or fire escape, nor shall any such sign be attached to any standpipe.

7. Temporary signs shall not be attached to fences, trees, utility poles or

permanent signs (except temporary signs may be attached to permanent

signs when there is a change of ownership or occupancy).

DOCUMENT 3 - PROPOSED CODE



8. Temporary signs shall not be placed in a position that will obstruct or impair

vision or traffic or in any way or manner create a hazard or disturbance to

the health and welfare of the general public.

9. Multiple temporary signs located on the same frontage and the same zoning

parcel in the Downtown and Corridor Commercial Sign Districts must be

separated by 50 feet.

10. All temporary signs shall be removed within five (5) business days

following the earlier to occur between (a) the expiration of the applicable

display limitation, or (b) the subject of the sign being complete, expired,

terminated or abandoned.  For the purpose of this Chapter, the Village shall

characterize the subject of the sign to be complete, expired, terminated or

abandoned when (a) work performed pursuant to a permit is complete or the

permit expires, whichever occurs first, (b) the date or event advertised on

the sign has passed, or (c) the product advertised on the sign has sold or

leased or the owner has terminated efforts to sell or lease the product.

11. Any violation of the conditions and restrictions of this section shall result

in the loss of forty-five (45) days from the annual maximum duration for

the display of a temporary sign. Such penalty shall roll over to the next

calendar year if less than 45 days remain in the applicable limitation.

B. Regulations by Sign District

1. Temporary freestanding signs, other than banners, are permitted in
compliance with the regulations of Tables 1 and 2 of this Section.  For
signs in the Residential Sign District, the regulations are divided
between signs placed on private property in a yard which does or does
not have frontage on an arterial road, including Riverwoods Road and
Half Day Road (Illinois Route 22).  For properties located in the
Residential Sign District with frontage on an arterial road, temporary
freestanding signs may be placed on either the front yard or corner side
yard, but not both.



Table 1 

Sign District Area Height Duration 

Residential 
(arterial) 16 sq. ft. 6 ft. 

 Only limited by Paragraphs 
A.5 and A.10, provided any
sign erected for more than
one year must be replaced

Residential  
(non-arterial) 2 sq. ft. 4 ft. 

Only limited by Paragraphs 
A.5 and A.10, provided any
sign erected for more than
one year must be replaced

Downtown 24 sq. ft. 6 ft. 

120 days per year in total; 
Not more than 6 separate 
times; Minimum gap of 7 

days 

Corridor 
Commercial 

24 sq. ft. 6 ft. 

120 days per year in total; 
Not more than 6 separate 
times; Minimum gap of 7 

days 

Office/Industrial 20 sq. ft. 6 ft. 91 days per year  in total 

Table 2 

Sign District Materials 

# of Signs 
per    

Zoning Lot Permit? 

Residential 
(arterial) 

Corrugated Plastic, 
Wood or Metal 

1 No 

Residential 
(non-arterial) 

Corrugated Plastic, 
Wood or Metal 

1 No 

Downtown 
Vinyl, Balloons, 

Corrugated Plastic, 
Wood or Metal 

2 per 
frontage 

Yes 

Corridor 
Commercial 

Vinyl, Balloons, 
Corrugated Plastic, 

Wood or Metal 

2 per 
frontage 

Yes 

Office/Industrial 
Vinyl, Balloons, 

Corrugated Plastic, 
Wood or Metal 

1 per 
frontage 

Yes 



2. Temporary signs affixed to the inside of windows are permitted, without
a permit, in compliance with the regulations of Tables 3 and 4 of this
Section.

Table 3 

Sign District Area Height Duration 

Downtown 

No 
greater 
than 25% 
of the 
window 
areaa 

Limited to 
Only the 
First Floor 

91 days per year in total; 
Not more than 6 separate 
times; Minimum gap of 14 

days 

Corridor 
Commercial 

No 
greater 
than 25% 
of the 
window 
area 

Limited to 
Only the 
First Floor 

91 days per year in total; 
Not more than 6 separate 
times; Minimum gap of 14 

days 

a “Window area” is defined as a continuous surface comprised of one (1) or more window 
panes until divided by an architectural or structural element.  Mullions are not considered 
an element that divides a window area. A “window pane” is each discrete piece of glass 
which is mounted in its own frame.  

Table 4 

Sign District Placement Materials Copy Area 

Downtown Interior 
Plastic Decals, 
Corrugated Plastic, 
Wood or Metal 

2” from the edge of 
any window pane 

Corridor 
Commercial 

Interior 
Plastic Decals, 
Corrugated Plastic, 
Wood or Metal  

2” from the edge of 
any window pane 



3. Temporary signs attached to Village-owned poles and parking lot light
poles are permitted to be erected by the owner of such pole in
compliance with the regulations of Tables 5 and 6 of this Section.

Table 5 

Sign District Area Height Duration 

Downtown 8 sq. ft. 

The face of the sign 
may not exceed15 
feet nor be lower 

than 8 feet 

91 days per year in total; Not 
more than 6 separate times; 

Minimum gap of 14 days 

Corridor 
Commercial 

8 sq. ft. 

The face of the sign 
may not exceed15 
feet nor be lower 

than 8 feet 

91 days per year in total; Not 
more than 6 separate times; 

Minimum gap of 14 days 

Table 6 

Sign District Materials Copy Area Permit? 

Downtown Plastic, Canvas 
2” from the edge of 
any window pane 

Yes 

Corridor 
Commercial 

Plastic Canvas 
2” from the edge of 
any window pane 

Yes 



4. Temporary freestanding banner signs are permitted in compliance with
the regulations of Tables 7 and 8 of this Section.  Banners may not be
affixed or attached to a wall.

Table 7 

Sign District Area Height Duration 

Residential 
(arterial) 16 sq. ft. 6 ft. 

14 Days per display period; 
Minimum gap of 14 days 

Residential 
(non-arterial) 2 sq. ft. 4 ft. 

14 Days per display period; 
Minimum gap of 14 days 

Downtown 24 sq. ft. 6 ft. 

91 days per year in total; Not 
more than 14 days for each 

display period; Minimum gap 
of 14 days 

Corridor 
Commercial 

24 sq. ft. 6 ft. 

91 days per year in total; Not 
more than 14 days for each 

display period; Minimum gap 
of 14 days 

Office/Industrial 20 sq. ft. 6 ft. 91 days per year  in total 

Table 8 

Sign District Materials 

# of Signs 
per    

Zoning Lot Permit? 

Residential Vinyl 1 Yes 

Downtown Vinyl 
1 per 

frontage 
Yes 

Corridor 
Commercial 

Vinyl 
1 per 

frontage 
Yes 

Office/Industrial Vinyl 
1 per 

frontage 
Yes 

5. The duration for the display period for temporary freestanding signs and
temporary banner signs shall not be cumulative, but shall be measured
concurrently.



O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  
L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9
w w w . l i n c ol ns hi re i l. g o v 

2.1 
MINUTES 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
Monday, January 14, 2019   

Present: 
Mayor Brandt   Trustee Harms Muth 
Trustee Grujanac Trustee Hancock 
Trustee McDonough   Trustee Servi  
Trustee Leider  Village Clerk Mastandrea 
Village Attorney Simon Village Manager Burke 
Finance Director/Treasurer Peterson   Public Works Director Woodbury 
Chief of Police Leonas Assistant Village Manager/Community & 
Planning & Development Manager Zozulya Economic Development Director Gilbertson 
Assistant Public Works Director/Village Public Works Management Analyst Facchini 

Engineer Dittrich 

ROLL CALL 
Mayor Brandt called the meeting to order at 7:08 p.m. and Village Clerk Mastandrea called the 
Roll. 

2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
2.1 Acceptance of the December 10, 2018 Committee of the Whole Meeting 

Minutes 

The minutes of the December 10, 2018 Committee of the Whole Meeting were 
approved as submitted. 

3.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 

3.1 Planning, Zoning and Land Use 
3.11  Consideration and Discussion of Recent Amendments to Title 12 

(Signs) of the Lincolnshire Village Code Regarding Residential 
Real Estate Signs (Village of Lincolnshire) 

Assistant Village Manager/Community & Economic Development (CED) 
Director Gilbertson provided background and summary of recent 
amendments to Title 12 (signs) of the Village code regarding residential 
real estate signs as a result of feedback received from local businesses, 
residents, and real estate brokers. Assistant Village Manager/CED 
Director Gilbertson noted the recent size changes were modeled after 
the requirements Lake Forest and Lake Bluff have. In terms of duration, 
the decision to have all temporary signs in each district visible for 91 
days was based on a U.S. Supreme Court decision (2015 Reed v. Town 
of Gilbert). 

D  O C U M E N T  4



Page 2 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
January 14, 2019 

Trustee Harms Muth asked if the U.S Supreme Court decision states 
only content neutrality applies to the duration of the sign. Village 
Attorney Simon noted each sign district is allowed to have time, place, 
and manner restrictions that are content blind. Trustee Harms Muth 
asked how other villages have their signs up for longer than 91 days. 
Village Attorney Simon stated the Supreme Court case is fairly recent. 
Planning & Development Manager Zozulya surveyed other communities 
to see if they changed their code to comply with the Supreme Court 
ruling and only a few of them have changed; many communities have 
ignored it so far.  

Trustee Harms Muth asked what other signs fall into the same category 
as real estate signs that the Village may be concerned about having up 
after 91 days. Village Attorney Simon stated other signs would be 
contractor signs. Trustee Leider asked if buildings under 
construction/developers would fall into this same category. Village 
Manager Burke confirmed they would fall under this category. Planning 
& Development Manager Zozulya noted church events would also fall 
under this category.  

Mayor Brandt asked Village Attorney Simon if exceptions could be 
made. Village Attorney Simon stated the exception cannot be based on 
the message on the sign. There is an existing rule that says signs must 
come down within five days after the purpose of the sign is mute. There 
is a closed-end rule so people do not leave signs up if they are 
irrelevant. One way to track this is if a permit has been closed. 

Mayor Brandt stated there are a few emails that came from realtors and 
invited those in the audience to make a statement. Mayor Brandt noted 
sign size was also brought up as an issue. 

Ms. Edie Love, resident of 24 Berkshire and also a realtor, stated as a 
local agent she is concerned with the proposed size and duration. Ms. 
Love stated Lake Forest and Lake Bluff are the only areas that have the 
small size Lincolnshire is proposing to change to. The current market 
time in Lincolnshire for home sales is 270 days, making the current 
duration an issue for real estate signs.  

Mr. Steve Grunyk, resident of 4 Sherwood Drive and also a realtor, 
stated his biggest concern is losing momentum and noted realtors need 
every tool to sell homes. Taking the signs down prevents this from 
happening and asked the Board to reconsider.  

Ms. Marcia Vecchione, resident of 32 Berkshire Lane and also a realtor, 
stated she is in agreement with Ms. Love and Mr. Grunyk.  

Trustee Leider asked for clarification on what the residents are 
suggesting. All three residents stated they are not in favor of the 
proposed changes to the sign code. The residents/realtors are asking 



Page 3 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
January 14, 2019 

how these changes came up. Planning & Development Manager 
Zozulya provided background to the proposed sign code changes. A 
conversation regarding real estate signs and time frame related to the 
proposed sign changes followed.  

Trustee Servi voiced concern over trying to regulate the outlier and 
asked if there was another way to regulate duration. Village Attorney 
Simon stated if there was no time limit required for temporary signs in 
this zoning district, with no rule to enforce an end time of an event, this 
could be a way to regulate. Assistant Village Manager/CED Director 
Gilbertson stated the intent of revising the code was to address signs 
going up well before the start time of an event. Trustee Leider stated his 
concern is the temporary signs would stay up indefinitely and suggested 
creating a separate categories for temporary signs. Village Attorney 
Simon stated it is easier to create sign maintenance rules than to carve 
out categories for these signs.  

Trustee Harms Muth asked how other municipalities are dealing with the 
end time for real estate signs. Village Attorney Simon stated other 
municipalities are governing these signs by their sign codes and may 
not yet have amended their codes to reflect content neutrality 
requirements based on the Reed v. Town of Gilbert case. A 
conversation regarding proposed time limits and on temporary signs 
followed. 

Trustees Grujanac and Harms Muth noted there opinion was to make 
the time limit of the temporary signs a year. Trustee Leider stated his 
opinion was there needs to be a time limit on the temporary signs but 
thought a year might be too long.  

Trustee Harms Muth asked for further clarification on what other types 
of signs fall into this category. Village Attorney Simon stated contractor 
signs, roofing, decorating, remodeling, school signs, Village signs, and 
promotional events for churches in the residential areas.  

Village Manager Burke noted the concern of the Village Board seemed 
to be the duration limit of so many days before and after the event. 
Village Manager Burke asked why couldn’t there be a duration attached 
to the code change. Village Attorney Simon stated he is not aware how 
to enforce a time limit before a house goes up for sale. Village Attorney 
Simon stated almost every type of sign requires an end date that can be 
associated with it and suggested having the rule apply to the end of the 
period. Trustee Leider noted concern regarding refreshing a sign after a 
long period of time.  Mayor Brandt asked if they can include language to 
have the signs refreshed after a certain amount of time. Village Attorney 
Simon suggested adding rules regarding sign aesthetics. 

A conversation regarding the change to temporary sign sizes followed. 
Ms. Love expressed the desire to keep the sign size the same it 



Page 4 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
January 14, 2019 

currently is. 

Mayor Brandt directed staff to poll the Trustees not in attendance and 
go with the consensus for size. 

It was the consensus of the Board to refer this to the Architectural 
Review Board for a Public Hearing at the February 19, 2019 Meeting 
once staff makes noted changes and gets consensus on sign sizes from 
the absent Trustees. 

3.12 Preliminary Evaluation Regarding a Text Amendment to Eliminate 
Ground Floor Sales Tax Generating Use Restrictions in B1 and B2 
Business Zoning Districts (Alexander and Julia Katsnelson) 

Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson provided a summary 
of a preliminary evaluation regarding a text amendment to eliminate 
ground floor sales tax generating use restrictions in B1 and B2 Business 
Zoning Districts as petitioned by Alexander and Julia Katsnelson. The 
text amendment is necessary for them, as physicians, to establish new 
dermatology and oral, maxillofacial, and surgery practices at 231 Olde 
Half Day Road in the B1 zoning district. The proposal is supported and 
has been approved by property owner Njb Real Estate LLC. 

Mayor Brandt asked if this was addressed a few weeks ago when the 
Board discussed this for the O/I District and thought the decision was 
already made. Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson 
stated this is a different zoning district. Village Manger Burke noted Staff 
saw an opportunity to raise a broader conversation about the entirety of 
B1 and B2. Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson noted 
staff would bring back changes for the entire zoning district but the 
petitioner would like to move forward with their business and this is the 
reason the request is being brought up separately.  

Dr. Alex Katsnelson provided a presentation regarding their proposed 
business and petition for preliminary evaluation regarding a text 
amendment to eliminate ground floor sales tax generating use 
restrictions in B1 and B2 Business Zoning Districts.  

Mayor Brandt asked how large the lot was and noted concern about 
building size and if parking requirements would be sufficient. Dr. 
Katsnelson stated they would present the findings at the next meeting 
but stated he felt parking would be adequate. Mayor Brandt asked if 
they had looked at other locations in Lincolnshire. Dr. Katslelson stated 
they had but preferred this particular location given its accessibility on 
Olde Half Day Road and proximity to other businesses and institutions.  

The consensus of the Board was to refer this to the Zoning Board.  

3.13 Consideration of Amendments to Title 5 (Building Regulations and 

tzozulya
Line



From: Tonya Zozulya
To: Edie Love
Cc: Ben Gilbertson
Subject: RE: New Lincolnshire Residential Real Estate Sign Code
Date: Thursday, December 6, 2018 2:09:35 PM
Attachments: image003.png

image002.png

Hi Edie,

Thank you for reaching out to express your concerns about the recently approved Sign Code
changes. We recognize there are unavoidable challenges with the Sign Code transition, and
appreciate your cooperation and understanding working through this. The Village Board and
the Architectural Review Board (ARB) spent over a year looking at all temporary signs,
including real estate signs, and directed staff to research other villages. The ARB held a public
hearing on January 16, 2018, where the community had the opportunity to provide testimony.
All ARB and Village Board meetings are available for public comment as well, and meeting
agendas are posted at the Village Hall, on the Village website, and in the weekly E-News, prior
to scheduled meetings. Here’s the October 22, 2018 packet that was submitted to the Village
Board regarding the code changes for background information (see Item 3.11 on page 8+):
https://lincolnshireil.gov/government/about/agendas-minutes-packets-video?
format=raw&task=download&fid=2008.

Both Boards discussed all aspects of residential real estate signs, including their permitted size
and duration. Ultimately, both the Village Board and ARB wished to reduce the size to what
was adopted using Lake Forest and Lake Bluff as a model (the sign panel - up to 2 square feet
and the overall sign height- up to 4 feet for all streets, except Riverwoods Road and half Day
Road in the Residential Sign District, where signs can be larger due to higher speeds and non-
residential uses such as churches). The Boards felt the previously permitted dimensions were
too large and having several larger real estate signs close by was viewed as undesirable for the
neighborhood image. Another reason for this discussion was that many buyers and sellers no
longer rely on physical signs alone as real estate decisions have largely moved online.

As to the real estate sign display period, all signs are now treated the same way in each sign
district, and so the display period applies to all of them. We did discuss the fact that real
estate signs need a longer “uninterrupted” period that other temporary signs and would have
preferred to have them placed in a separate group for that reason. However, the Village
Attorney counseled us real estate signs cannot have a different time period that the rest of
temporary signs, per a 2015 Reed vs. Town of Gilbert Supreme Court case decision.

Thanks again for writing, and I hope this addresses your questions and concerns.

Tonya 

mailto:tzozulya@lincolnshireil.gov
mailto:elove@Koenigrubloff.com
mailto:bgilbertson@lincolnshireil.gov
https://lincolnshireil.gov/government/about/agendas-minutes-packets-video
https://lincolnshireil.gov/i-want-to/sign-up-for/e-mail-updates
https://lincolnshireil.gov/government/about/agendas-minutes-packets-video?format=raw&task=download&fid=2008
https://lincolnshireil.gov/government/about/agendas-minutes-packets-video?format=raw&task=download&fid=2008


tzozulya
Typewritten text
DOCUMENT 5



Sincerely,

Tonya Zozulya | Planning & Development Manager

Direct: 847-913-2313 | Email: tzozulya@lincolnshireil.gov
Website: http://www.lincolnshireil.gov

From: Edie Love [mailto:elove@Koenigrubloff.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, December 05, 2018 1:34 PM
To: Tonya Zozulya
Subject: Re: New Lincolnshire Residential Real Estate Sign Code

Thanks for sharing the new information on signs.  I have two questions:  Has the size of the
sign panel changed? Many of us have personalized panels that we have had made and will
have to buy all new sign panels if so.  Also why make us take the sign down after 91 days?
 The current market time for Lincolnshire is 268 days.  We all pay a sign company to put up
and take down signs for us, that is going to get expensive if we have to keep having it removed
and re-installed.  I don't really understand that new policy.  

Maybe conferring with a few of us agents who do a lot of business in town would help with
the new rules if it isn't too late.  Let me know, thanks.

EDIE LOVE
Broker
Berkshire Hathaway Homeservices
Koenig Rubloff Realty Group
Office: 847-234-2500
Cell: 847-226-5597
Fax: 847-735-6357
www.edielove.com

The contents of this email message, together with any attachments, are intended for the use of the individual or entity to

which they are addressed and may contain information that is legally privileged and confidential.  If you are not the intended

recipient you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, or copying of this message, or any attachment is strictly

prohibited.  If you received this message in error, please notify the original sender immediately by telephone or by return

email and delete this message, along with any attachments, from your computer.  Thank you.

From: Tonya Zozulya <tzozulya@lincolnshireil.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, December 5, 2018 12:41 PM
To: Tonya Zozulya
Subject: New Lincolnshire Residential Real Estate Sign Code

Dear Local Brokerage Representative:

http://lincolnshireil.gov/
mailto:tzozulya@lincolnshireil.gov
http://www.lincolnshireil.gov/
http://www.edielove.com/


On November 12, 2018, the Lincolnshire Village Board adopted comprehensive changes to
the Sign Code to make sign regulations more streamlined and responsive to the needs of the
Lincolnshire community. The revisions affect all temporary signs in the community, including
residential real estate signs in the Residential Sign District (this sign district is depicted in
the light yellow color on the attached map). The main changes are a smaller size of signs for
internal streets; no more than 1 sign per property (including corner lots); and a new sign
display period (see below summary for details). Any existing signs may remain up until the
property is sold or leased. However, all new listings must have code-compliant signs should
you choose to use signage for marketing purposes. Click HERE to view the full Temporary
Sign Code. Please share this email with your colleagues and keep a copy in your office for
future reference. If you have questions or would like additional information, please contact me
at 847.913.2313 or at tzozulya@lincolnshireil.gov.
 
 
 
Below is a summary of the new requirements for the Residential Sign District real estate signs:

·         Signs along internal streets (i.e., all streets, except Riverwoods Road and Half Day
Road) can be up to 4’ in height (as measured from the adjacent grade to the highest
point of the sign structure/pole) and have a sign panel of up to 2 sq. ft. in area. The
panel area includes any optional riders attached to the sign.

·         Only one (1) freestanding real estate sign is permitted on any property, including
corner lots. For corner lots, the code-compliant real estate sign may be installed on
either frontage at the discretion of the homeowner and/or broker.

·         Signs along the Riverwoods Road and Half Day Road arterial streets can be up to 6’ in
height (as measured from the adjacent grade to the highest point of the sign
structure/pole) and have a sign panel of up to 16 sq.ft. in area. This panel area includes
any optional riders attached to the sign.

·         Signs may be installed on private property only, 5’ from the nearest lot line.
·         The maximum sign display period is 91 days after which time the sign must be

removed for 14 days. It can be then reinstalled for another 91 days, removed for 14
days and so forth until the property is sold or leased. There is no limit on how many
times a sign can go back up.

·         Signs must be removed within 5 business days of the property sale or lease.
·         Signs may not be attached to fences, trees, and similar structures.
·         Signs must remain in compliance with code and in good condition and may be subject

to immediate removal due to poor condition and disrepair, as determined by the
Village.

·         No permit from the Village is required prior to sign installation.
 
 
 
Sincerely,
 
Tonya Zozulya | Planning & Development Manager

https://lincolnshireil.gov/sitemedia/documents/quick_links/village-code/title-12/code1213.pdf
mailto:tzozulya@lincolnshireil.gov
http://lincolnshireil.gov/


1

Ben Gilbertson

From: Brad Burke
Sent: Monday, December 17, 2018 8:48 AM
To: Ben Gilbertson
Subject: FW: Signage in Lincolnshire

 
 
Bradly J. Burke | Village Manager 
Direct: 847-913-2335 | Email: bburke@lincolnshireil.gov   
Website: http://www.lincolnshireil.gov  
 

From: Mayor Brandt  
Sent: Sunday, December 16, 2018 10:06 PM 
To: Brad Burke <bburke@lincolnshireil.gov> 
Subject: Fwd: Signage in Lincolnshire 
 
Can you please send this email to the Trustees. 
 
Thank You 

Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Marcia Vecchione <mcvrealtor@gmail.com> 
Date: December 10, 2018 at 5:51:00 PM CST 
To: <mayorbrandt@lincolnshireil.gov>, <trusteeharmsmuth@lincolnshire.gov> 
Subject: Signage in Lincolnshire 

Dear Liz: 
 
This is just to follow up with our conversation last Wednesday night about the new Lincolnshire 
sign restrictions. All of the agents that I have spoken with that do business in the community 
think that the new regulations are too restrictive and really don't make much sense. 
 
I spoke with my manager, Keri Falls of the Lake Forest office, I also spoke to a few of the top 
LF/LB agents, and they are not aware of any time restrictions put on the length of time that a 
sign can be displayed. Who came up with that information?  
 
It seems kind of silly to install a sign remove after 91 days (why 91 and not 90?), then reinstall it 
after 2 weeks. All I can say is that it is a bizarre rule. There are so many reasons that it doesn't 
make sense...I am not sure where to begin.  
 
As far as the size...most of us have never liked the LF/LB signs...you barely see them and the 
type is not really very legible when driving by. My office has been in LF for many years and 
I  have worked for both CB & @properties...for over 20 years, and I will have to say, the agents 
were never happy when the signs changed in  size. I do realize that buyers today find properties 



2

on websites and are not necessarily driving by looking for RE signs. I would have to say though, 
that in any given year, I do receive a high number of inquiries from our yard signs. Those turn 
into showings for my clients. 
 
Is this a done deal with the Village or is there any recourse?? 
 
Thanks for let me blabber on...it's just an annoying new community regulation that we Realtors 
are not happy with. 
 
 
--  
Marcia Vecchione  
 
@properties | broker associate    
600 Western Ave, Lake Forest, IL 60045 
  
d. 847.804.9432 o. 847.295.0700  
www.mikenmarciahomes.com  
www.atproperties.com/agents/2867/marcia-vecchione 
 

Right-click 
here to  
download 
pictures.  To  
help protect 
your privacy, 
Outlo ok 
prevented 
auto matic  
download of 
this pictu re  
from the  
In ternet.
Facebook 
icon

  

Right-click 
here to  
download 
pictures.  To  
help protect 
your privacy, 
Outlo ok 
prevented 
auto matic  
download of 
this pictu re  
from the  
In ternet.
LinkedIn icon
 

  
love where you  LIVE 



Agenda Item 

   3.3 ARB 

V:\CED\Administration\Code_Revisions\SIGN 
ORDINANCE\2018_2019_DowntownSignDistrict\2_19_19_ARB_Workshop\2019_02_19_ARB_Downtown_Corridor_Sign_Dimensi
ons.docx 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Architectural Review Board  

February 19, 2019 

Subject: Sign Code (Title 12) Revisions - Downtown and Corridor 
Commercial Sign District Requirements  

Action Requested: Continued Workshop Regarding Permanent Wall and Ground Sign 
Requirements in the Downtown and Corridor Commercial Sign 
Districts  

Petitioner: Village of Lincolnshire 

Originated 
By/Contact: 

Tonya Zozulya, Planning & Development Manager 

Referred To: Architectural Review Board 

Background: 

On December 18, 2018, the Architectural Review Board (ARB) held a workshop to discuss 
permanent wall and ground sign regulations in the Downtown and Corridor Commercial Sign 
Districts for potential standardization and enhancement in both districts per the Village Board’s 
request (see attached Document 1). At the conclusion of the meeting, the ARB reached 
consensus to combine the Downtown and Corridor Commercial sign districts into one district and 
noted the following areas for further research and discussion (see attached Document 4):  

1. Apply current Corridor Commercial wall and ground sign dimensions.

2. Apply current Downtown District monument sign design requirements (base, sign
area, and cap).

3. Add flexibility in ground sign materials while complementing building architecture.

4. Consider more stringent ground sign landscape regulations.

Since the ARB meeting, staff conducted a community survey through the Northwest Municipal 
conference and received 9 responses (see attached Document 3). Additionally, staff contacted 
Lake Forest, Lake Bluff, Highland Park, Deerfield, and Northbrook regarding ground sign 
landscaping and received responses from Lake Bluff and Highland Park.   

Sign Dimensions & Illumination: 

Per the ARB’s direction, the below current Corridor Commercial wall and ground sign dimensional 
and illumination requirements will apply to the combined district (staff proposes it be called 
“Commercial Sign District”).   



Agenda Item 

   3.3 ARB 

V:\CED\Administration\Code_Revisions\SIGN 
ORDINANCE\2018_2019_DowntownSignDistrict\2_19_19_ARB_Workshop\2019_02_19_ARB_Downtown_Corridor_Sign_Dimensi
ons.docx 

Table 1: Wall Signs 

Sign District Illumination 
Max 

Length 

Max Face 
Height (letters 

& graphics) 

Max Letter 
Height 

Max Logo 
Height 

Commercial Backlit 

Frontlit (with conditions)* 

Goosenecks 

18’ 36” 24” 30” 

*Conditions include: (1) Office use only; (2) Buildings that are 40’ or taller; and (3) Signs mounted at 35’
above grade or higher.

Table 2: Double-Post Ground Signs 

Sign District Illumination Max Area 
Max Structure 

Area 
Max Structure 

Height 
Max Structure 

Length 

Commercial Frontlit 

Backlit 
Goosenecks 

30 sq.ft. 72 sq.ft. 6’ 12’ 

Table 3: Monument Signs 

Sign District Illumination Max Area 
Max Structure 

Height 
Max Structure 

Length 

Commercial 
(single-tenant) 

Frontlit 

Backlit 

Goosenecks 

60 sq.ft. 6’ 10’ 

Commercial 
(multi-tenant) 

Frontlit 

Backlit 

Goosenecks 

75 sq.ft. 7.5’ 10’ 

All nine of the surveyed communities permit frontlit permanent sign illumination with restrictions 
regarding light intensity, glare, flashing/moving, neon and “box/cabinet” signs in which letters 
are not individually articulated. The Lincolnshire Code already has the same restrictions.  

Staff requests the ARB determine if all permanent single-tenant and multi-tenant wall and 
ground signs in the combined commercial district should be allowed to be frontlit (in addition to 
the current backlit and gooseneck options) without any conditions regarding property use and 
building/sign mounting height. This would be consistent with the current Corridor Commercial 
Sign District regulations but would eliminate the current three frontlit wall sign illumination 
conditions noted with an asterisk underneath Table 1.  

If the ARB would like to allow frontlit signs with no conditions in the proposed Commercial Sign 
District, staff recommends the three frontlit wall sign illumination conditions also removed from 
the Office/Industrial Sign District, which currently allows frontlit wall signs with the same 
conditions as the Corridor Commercial Sign District.    

Staff also recommend clarifying in the code that only letters and logos be illuminated; a sign 
band/background may not be illuminated. This would be consistent with current Village signage 
approvals.  



Agenda Item 

   3.3 ARB 

V:\CED\Administration\Code_Revisions\SIGN 
ORDINANCE\2018_2019_DowntownSignDistrict\2_19_19_ARB_Workshop\2019_02_19_ARB_Downtown_Corridor_Sign_Dimensi
ons.docx 

Monument Sign Design Requirements: 

Per the ARB’s direction, the current Downtown Sign District monument sign design regulations 
(base, sign area, and cap) will be applied to monument signs in the combined district. These 
requirements will not apply to the double-post ground sign design where a sign panel is located 
between two support posts.  

Ground Sign Materials: 

Currently, the general section of the code (Section 12-9-1) that applies to all sign districts states 
ground signs are required to be an integral part of the site and building design by sharing 
architectural features with the main building, including one or more building materials, colors, and 
design elements. The allowable material palette currently consists of wood, stone, brick, copper, 
bronze, steel, brushed aluminum, iron, concrete or similar. Synthetic plaster (i.e., dryvit) is allowed 
if it used as a primary exterior material on the main building. The Downtown Sign District is more 
restrictive as it requires the use of natural materials only (such as wood, stone, masonry or 
composite materials that resemble natural materials). Based on the ARB’s discussion, the general 
section material permissibility will be applied to the combined district so the material palette is not 
limited to “natural” materials.   

The attached Northwest community survey indicates one community requires the use of stone, 
brick, or wood and one requires that signs match the building material.     

Staff requests the ARB determine if any revisions are necessary to the current ground sign material 
regulations.  

Ground Sign Landscape Regulations: 

The current code contains the following regulations: 

o For every square foot of gross ground sign area, 2 square feet of landscaping is required
at the base of the sign.

o At least 2 different types of plant material are required (such as annual/perennial flowers,
grasses, deciduous and evergreen bushes or shrubs and ground covers), with at least 1
being an evergreen shrub or groundcover.

o If no evergreens are used, then 3 different types of plant materials are required.

o If a landscape bed is located within 15’ from the road, at least 2 different plant materials
are required, one of which may be annual flowers. Evergreens are not required.

o Soil protection, such as mulch, is required.

o No more than 25% of the landscape bed is allowed to be unplanted at any given time.

The previous landscape regulations required an evergreen plant material for all sign beds. 
However, after businesses expressed concerns about the impact of salt on landscape beds 
adjacent to roads, the Village Board relaxed the regulations and exempted beds within 15’ of the 
road from the evergreen plant material requirement.   

The community survey conducted by staff showed our current regulations are the most 
comprehensive and stringent of all the 14 communities surveyed to ensure plant diversity and year-
round coverage and visual interest. As such, staff believes current regulations are appropriate. 
However, we intend to improve sign landscape maintenance through a more streamlined private 
property notification, inspection, and enforcement process to ensure the integrity of approved 
landscape plans.    



Agenda Item 

   3.3 ARB 

V:\CED\Administration\Code_Revisions\SIGN 
ORDINANCE\2018_2019_DowntownSignDistrict\2_19_19_ARB_Workshop\2019_02_19_ARB_Downtown_Corridor_Sign_Dimensi
ons.docx 

Staff requests the ARB determine if any revisions are necessary to the current sign 
landscape regulations. 

Recommendation: 

Discussion and feedback to staff. If the ARB would like to propose text amendments regarding 
Downtown and Corridor Commercial Sign District permanent wall and ground signs for the Village 
Board’s consideration, a public hearing will be scheduled at the next Architectural Review Board 
meeting. Prior to the public hearing, staff will provide the ARB with a redlined copy of the draft 
ordinance incorporating the text amendments as well as a revised Sign District map with the new 
Commercial Sign District location, which would replace the current Corridor Commercial and 
Downtown Sign Districts.   

Reports and Documents Attached: 

 Document 1: Sign District map.

 Document 2: Chapters 8 and 9 of the Sign Code regarding wall and ground sign regulations.

 Document 3: Northwest Municipal Conference community survey regarding signs and
landscaping.

 Document 4: December 18, 2018 ARB meeting minutes.

Meeting History 

Committee of the Whole November 12, 2018 

Architectural Review Board Workshop (initial) December 18, 2018 

Architectural Review Board Workshop 
(continued) 

February 19, 2019 



Village of Lincolnshire Title 12: Sign Control 
Revised 03/13/2017  Page 1 

CHAPTER 6 

ESTABLISHMENT OF SIGN DISTRICTS

SECTION: 

12-6-1 ESTABLISHMENT OF SIGN DISTRICTS

A. Purpose

The establishment of the following sign districts is based upon the dominant uses found in
each district to ensure that signage is consistent with the unique development character
maintained in each district.  Regardless of sign district, signage in the Village shall be of the
highest aesthetic standards and promote the Village as a unique destination with clear and
specific requirements.

B. Sign Districts

1. Downtown Sign District

The purpose of the Downtown Sign District is to ensure that signs within the downtown
are compatible with the character and image of the downtown, and provide businesses
with a number of alternatives for advertising to pedestrian and automotive patrons.

In the interest of creating and maintaining an identity and character for the District, for
each property or planned unit development located within the Downtown Sign District,
three (3) of the five (5) types of building Identification Signs shall be selected for all of the
buildings in the development: ground signs, wall signs, window signs, blade signs,
awning or canopy signs. In addition, directional signs are permitted in the Downtown Sign
District for each property or planned unit development.

2. Corridor Commercial Sign District

The purpose of the Corridor Commercial Sign District is to ensure that signs located
along major arterials provide an effective means of advertising, as well as presenting a
positive and coordinated appearance of the Village along the roadway. Signs within the
corridor commercial areas are primarily oriented toward the automobile.

In the interest of creating and maintaining an identity and character for the District, for
each property or planned unit development located within the Corridor Commercial Sign
District, three (3) of the five (5) types of building Identification Signs shall be selected for
all of the buildings in the development: ground signs, wall signs, window signs, blade
signs, awning or canopy signs. In addition, directional signs are permitted in the Corridor
Commercial Sign District for each property or planned unit development.

3. Office/Industrial Sign District

The purpose of the Office/Industrial Sign District is to ensure that signs located within the
Village’s Office/Industrial Districts provide an effective means of identifying the location
and services of the businesses in the District, as well as presenting a positive and

DOCUMENT 1



Village of Lincolnshire Title 12: Sign Control 
Revised 03/13/2017 Page 2 

coordinated appearance of the Village along the roadway. Signs within the 
Office/Industrial areas are primarily oriented toward the automobile.  

In the interest of creating and maintaining an identity and character for the District, for 
each property or planned unit development located within the Office/Industrial Sign 
District, two (2) of the following types of building Identification Signs shall be selected for 
all of the buildings: ground signs, or wall signs. In addition, directional signs are permitted 
in the Office/Industrial Sign District for each property or planned unit development. 

4. Residential Sign District

The purpose of the Residential Sign District is to ensure proper regulation of signs
common to residential areas for both permitted non-residential uses that need to identify
their location, and the variety of temporary and non-commercial signs residents may
desire, provided they are not displayed in a manner that is contrary to the predominant
residential character of the district.

In the interest of creating and maintaining an identity and character for the District, for
each non-residential property or planned unit development located within the Residential
Sign District, one (1) of following types of building Identification Signs shall be selected
for all of the buildings in the development: ground sign, or wall sign. In addition,
directional signs are permitted in the Residential Sign District for each non-residential
property or planned unit development.

C. Sign District Location

The locations of the Village of Lincolnshire’s Sign Districts are indicated on the following
page. Upon being annexed, the Zoning Administrator shall have the authority to assign
properties not depicted on the Sign District map described in this Title to the appropriate Sign
District based on the applicable zoning and the Sign District(s) to which the property is
contiguous.



Village of Lincolnshire Title 12: Sign Control 
Revised 03/13/2017 Page 3 



Village of Lincolnshire Title 12: Sign Control 
Revised 4/27/15  Page 1 

CHAPTER 8 

SIGN CONSTRUCTION AND DESIGN: GENERAL STANDARDS 

SECTION: 

12-8-1 SIGN CONSTRUCTION AND DESIGN: GENERAL STANDARDS

The following standards apply to all signs, unless specifically noted otherwise. 

A. Location

1. Only signs placed by federal, state and/or local government may be erected upon public
property, including but not limited to rights-of-way.

2. No sign mounted on the exterior of a building shall cover any windows, doors or any
architectural building features.

3. All portions of letters/logo shall be a minimum of three (3) feet from the building edge of
any face, roof line, ground line or floor/ceiling/roof/wall lines which separate individual
tenant spaces.

4. On a corner lot, no freestanding sign over two (2) feet tall may be placed within the
visibility triangle. The visibility triangle is an area with one (1) point at the intersection of
the intersecting streets’ centerlines, and the other two (2) points located on each street’s
centerline one-hundred (100) feet away from the intersection of said centerlines. The
clear sight area is illustrated below.

Illustration of vision triangle for 12-8-1-A-4 

DOCUMENT 2



Village of Lincolnshire Title 12: Sign Control 
Revised 11/12/18  Page 2 

B. Sign Structure and Installation

Supports and braces shall be an integral part of the sign design. Angle irons, chains or wires
used for supports or braces shall be hidden from public view to the extent technically feasible.

C. Wind Pressure and Direct Load

All signs must be designed and constructed to receive dead loads and withstand a wind
speed of no less than ninety (90) miles per hour.

D. Illumination

Any sign illumination, including gooseneck reflectors must be designed, located, shielded and
directed to prevent the casting of glare or direct light upon roadways and surrounding
properties, or to distract the operators of motor vehicle or pedestrians in the public right-of-
way. In the case of internally illuminated signs, the sign face must function as a filter for any
illumination.

1. Illuminated signs located within 120 feet of any dwelling and for which the sign face has a
direct line of sight toward windows of such dwelling shall be turned off and not operated
no later than one o’clock (1:00) A.M. or when the premises is no longer open to the
public, whichever is earlier, and may be turned and operated no earlier than when the
premises opens to the public or six o’clock (6:00) A.M., whichever is earlier.
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, for businesses which are open to the
public 24 hours each day, illuminated signs are not required to be turned off any time the
business remains open.  For the purpose of this section D.1, the measurement shall be
from the face of the sign to the nearest façade of the nearest dwelling.  Except as
provided in this paragraph, all other signs are not required to be turned off.

2. Lighting for signs shall be in harmony with the signs' and the project's design. If outside
lighting is used, it should be arranged so the light source is shielded from view.

3. The maximum lighting shall be one-half (½) footcandle, as measured at the property line
reflecting from a white background aimed at the face of the sign.

4. All illuminated signs shall be equipped with a safety shut-off switch.

E. Landscaping

All Ground Signs must be landscaped at the base of the sign in accordance with the
following:

1. For every one (1) square foot of gross sign area, there shall be provided a minimum of
two (2) square feet of landscape area.

2. The sign landscape plan must be drawn to scale, and shall show the dimensions of the
proposed landscape area. The sign landscape plan shall provide a species list which
includes the common and scientific name, size, quantity, and period of flowering (annuals
and perennials), for all proposed plant material.

3. The sign landscape plan will utilize a variety of plant types including, but not limited to;
deciduous and evergreen shrubs, annual and perennial plants and grasses, and ground
covers, to achieve both height variation and color interest throughout the four seasons.



Village of Lincolnshire Title 12: Sign Control 
Revised 11/12/18  Page 3 

Ground signs must be landscaped with small shrubs a minimum of eighteen (18) inches 
in height at planting. The remainder of the landscaped area must be planted with 
perennials or other groundcover. 

4. To provide diversity, at least two (2) different types of plant material must be installed,
excluding turf and annual flowers, provided that at least one plant type shall consist of
evergreen shrubs or groundcovers.  If evergreen shrubs or groundcovers are not used at
all, at least three (3) different types of plant material must be installed, one of which may be
annual flowers.

If any portion of the required planting area is located less than fifteen (15) feet from the
edge of the street, that portion shall be exempt from the evergreen requirement and shall
include a minimum of two (2) different types of plant material, one of which may be annual
flowers.

5. In addition to the plantings described above, the sign landscape plan shall also include
soil protection such as, but not limited to, ground cover plants or organic hardwood
mulch. However, no more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the total landscape bed may
be void of plants at any one time.

6. All landscaping must be maintained in good condition, and free and clear of rubbish and
weeds.

7. Sign landscaping must conform to the requirements of this section within one (1) year
after the effective date of this Code.

F. Glass

Any glass forming a part of any sign shall be safety glass with a minimum thickness of one-
fourth (1/4) inch.

G. Lettering

All letters, figures, characters or representations, in cut-out or irregular form, maintained in
conjunction with, attached to, or superimposed upon any sign must be safely and securely
built or attached to the sign structure.

H. Items of Information

1. All signs must limit the number of items of information on any single sign face to no more
than two (2) items to prevent traffic hazards for passing motorists and to minimize the
cluttered appearance of signs.

2. Each descriptive or identifying word, set of words, icon, logo, symbol or image on a
sign shall be defined as an “item of information”. For example, but not in limitation
thereof, each of the following would be one (1) item of information: (a) the name of
the business, even if multiple words, or (b) the business logo. The street number
address of the business is not counted as an item of information. A company
catchphrase or motto may be included on a sign only if it is a part of the legal name
of a business. Products, services, telephone number, or a website address shall not
be permitted as part of the Copy on a permanent sign unless it is part of the legal
name of a business. The prohibition against displaying the names of products or
services shall not apply to Awning/Canopy Signs. Temporary signs shall be exempt
from any limitations on items of information.



Village of Lincolnshire Title 12: Sign Control 
Revised 11/12/18  Page 4 

3. Changeable message signs where the items of information are changed manually or
electronically, only as expressly permitted by other sections of this Title, are counted as
one (1) item of information.

4. All signs on a zoning lot must be related to the resident or business located on such
zoning lot, with the exception of non-commercial or political signs.

5. Ground signs for commercial developments with multiple tenants that advertise the
names of the tenants located within the development are limited to one (1) item of
information per tenant. Ground signs for multi-tenant developments shall have a total limit
of four (4) items of information. The name of the multi-tenant development shall not be
included as an additional item of information.

6. Directory signs are exempt from the items of information limitation.

I. Maintenance

1. All signs shall be kept and maintained in a safe, neat and orderly condition and
appearance.

2. The owner and/or lessee of each sign shall maintain such sign to prevent corrosion or
deterioration caused by the weather, age or any other condition, and otherwise to keep
the same in a safe, neat and orderly condition and appearance.

J. Design Criteria

The purpose of these design criteria is to establish a checklist of those items relative to signs
that affect the aesthetics of Lincolnshire's environment. Pertinent to signs is the design of the
sign and its relation to buildings, structures, planting, street furniture and the distance to the
nearest public street.

The following criteria are not intended to restrict imagination, innovation or variety, but rather
to assist in focusing on design principles that can result in creative solutions that will develop
a satisfactory visual appearance within the Village, preserve property values and promote the
public health, safety and welfare.

1. Every sign shall have good scale and proportion in its design and in its visual relationship
to buildings and surroundings.

Illustration of number of items of information for 12-8-1-H-2 



Village of Lincolnshire Title 12: Sign Control 
Revised 11/12/18  Page 5 

2. Sign materials, size, color, lettering, location and arrangement shall be an integral part of
site and building design.

3. The colors and materials of every sign shall be restrained and harmonious.

4. The number of graphic elements on a sign shall be held to the minimum needed to
convey the sign's principle message, and shall be composed in proportion to the area of
the sign face. Text should be kept to permitted items of information.

5. Supports and braces shall be an integral part of the sign design. Angle irons, chains or
wires used for supports or braces shall be hidden from public view to the extent
technically feasible.

K. Sign Face to be Smooth

Any sign, other advertising structure, marquee, canopy or awning, as defined in this Title,
which is within ten (10) feet of a street, shall have no nails, tacks, wires or other hazardous
projections protruding therefrom.

L. Copy Area Appearance

The Copy on any sign must be legibly and professionally rendered on a suitable contrasting
background, which enhances the visibility of the Copy and is consistent with the design
criteria described herein.



Village of Lincolnshire Title 12: Sign Control 
Revised 03/13/2017 Page 1 

CHAPTER 9 

SIGN CONSTRUCTION AND DESIGN: SPECIFIC STANDARDS BY SIGN TYPE 

SECTION: 

12-9-1 SIGN CONSTRUCTION AND DESIGN: SPECIFIC STANDARDS BY SIGN TYPE

The following signs are the only types of permanent signs permitted in the Village. 

A. Ground Signs

Ground signs are permitted subject to the following:

1. Ground signs are permitted only in the districts listed in Tables 1 and 2, subject to the
regulations of Tables 1 and 2 and this Title.

2. One (1) ground sign is permitted per street frontage of a zoning lot with a maximum of
two (2) sign faces, except that any lot or parcel with a frontage of eight hundred (800) feet
or more may have two (2) ground signs located not less than four hundred (400) feet
apart. If a zoning lot has frontage on more than one (1) street then said lot will be allowed
one (1) ground sign per frontage, provided there is sufficient frontage to place the two (2)
signs no closer than one hundred (100) feet apart.

3. In addition to a ground sign, drive-through establishments are permitted one (1) menu
board sign, whether constructed as a ground sign or double post sign, no more than forty
(40) square feet in sign area, no more than six (6) feet in height and no less than twenty
(20) feet from any lot line.

4. Ground signs must be setback a minimum distance from the edge of the street, as shown
in Table 1: Ground Signs – Monument and Table 2: Ground Signs – Double Post. All
signs must be located entirely on private property. No part of any ground sign may be
located within or over a street.

5. All ground signs shall be approved by the Department of Community and Economic
Development as being in compliance with Title 5, Chapter 4 of the Village Code and shall
be constructed of incombustible or approved combustible materials as defined in Section
12-3-1 Definitions.

6. Ground signs may be illuminated by backlit/reverse channel or channel lighting or by
external lighting fixtures such as goosenecks and flood lights, with lighting color restricted
to shades of white.  Internally illuminated ground signs shall be designed so light is
filtered through the face of individually cut letter sets.  Within the Downtown Sign District,
internal illumination shall be limited to multi-tenant ground signs only.

7. The sign structure and sign face of ground signs shall exhibit good scale and proportion;
and shall be an integral part of the site and building design by sharing architectural
features with the principal structure, including one or more building materials, colors, or
design elements.

8. The sign material of ground signs shall consist of materials such as wood, stone, brick,
copper, bronze, steel, brushed aluminum, iron, concrete, or similar. Synthetic plaster



 

Village of Lincolnshire  Title 12: Sign Control 
Revised 03/13/2017   Page 2 

 

 

 

shall be permitted if it is used as a primary exterior material on the approved principal 
structure. 

 
9. Letters and logo(s) are limited to no more than two (2) colors and must be individually 

carved, etched, or raised and may consist of plastic, wood, or metal letters, with a non-
reflective surface, on a contrasting background.  Multiple colors used on a logo or mark 
registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office are permitted.  
Consistency must be provided between ground sign lettering and the accompanying wall 
signs on the building. 

 
10. All ground signs in the Downtown District must be constructed of natural materials, such 

as wood, stone or masonry, including composite materials that give the impression of 
such materials. 

 
11. All monument ground signs in the Downtown District shall be composed of three (3) 

parts: base, sign area and cap.  
 
12. Ground signs for multi-tenant buildings shall exhibit the same design characteristics; 

including materials, color, fonts, lighting, tenant panels, etc, and shall be consistent in 
design where there are multiple ground signs on a single property. Ground signs for 
multi-tenant buildings are limited to four (4) tenants per sign face and a development 
name. The development name must be larger than the name of individual tenants. In 
addition, the development name may be distinguished from the individual tenants by font, 
color or material.  

 
13. The Copy Area shall be a minimum of 2 inches (2”) from the perimeter of each Sign Face 

and shall not exceed a maximum of seventy percent (70%) of the Sign Area. 
 
 

TABLE 1 
GROUND SIGNS – MONUMENT 

SIGN DISTRICT 
Maximum Sign 

Area 
Maximum Height 

of Monument 
Maximum Length 

of Monument 
Minimum 
Setback 

Downtown Sign 
District 
- Single Tenant 

54 sq. ft. 6 ft. 9 ft. 15 ft. 

Downtown Sign 
District 
- Multi Tenant 

67.5 sq. ft. 7.5 ft.  9 ft. 15 ft. 

Corridor Commercial 
Sign District 
- Single Tenant 

60 sq. ft. 6 ft. 10 ft. 15 ft. 

Corridor Commercial 
Sign District 
- Multi Tenant 

75 sq. ft. 7.5 ft.  10 ft. 15 ft. 

Office/Industrial Sign 
District 

72 sq. ft. 6 ft. 12 ft. 15 ft. 

Residential Sign 
District 

30 sq. ft. 5 ft. 6 ft. 15 ft. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Village of Lincolnshire Title 12: Sign Control 
Revised 03/13/2017 Page 3 

TABLE 2 
GROUND SIGNS – DOUBLE POST 

SIGN DISTRICT 
Maximum 
Sign Area 

Maximum 
Structure 

Area 

Maximum 
Structure 

Height 

Maximum 
Structure 
Length 

Minimum 
Setback 

Downtown Sign 
District 

24 sq. ft. 66 sq. ft. 5.5 ft. 12 ft. 15 ft. 

Corridor 
Commercial Sign 
District 

30 sq. ft. 72 sq. ft. 6 ft. 12 ft. 15 ft. 

Office/Industrial 
Sign District 

30 sq. ft. 72 sq. ft. 6 ft. 12 ft. 15 ft. 

Residential Sign 
District 

20 sq. ft. 44 sq. ft. 5.5 ft. 8 ft. 15 ft. 

B. Wall Signs

Permanent wall signs are permitted in the Downtown Sign District, the Corridor Commercial 
Sign District, the Office/Industrial Sign District and for non-residential uses in the Residential 
Sign District, subject to the following standards.  

1. Wall signs are permitted only in districts listed in Table 3, subject to the regulations of
Table 3 and this Title. The maximum Sign Area of a wall sign shall be ten percent (10%)
of the area of the wall to which it is attached, including doors and windows, or the
maximum wall sign area listed in Table 3, whichever is less.

2. Wall signs are permitted for each building wall that faces a public street or parking lot, with
no more than one (1) wall sign permitted on any wall, unless permitted by Section 12-9-
1(B)(11) and Section 12-9-1(B)(13). Where there is a secondary customer entrance, an
additional wall sign is permitted but shall be limited to no more than sixteen (16) square feet
and shall only indicate the name of the business and the words “entrance,” “enter” or similar
term.

3. The total area of a side wall sign or signs shall not exceed five percent (5%) of the area
of the side façade of the principal building, including doors and windows, or twenty-five
(25) square feet, whichever is less. Any side wall sign must be located facing a side yard
of twelve (12) feet or more in width on the same lot.

4. Wall signs must be safely and securely attached to the building wall. Wall signs must be
affixed flat against the building wall and must not project more than six (6) inches from
the building wall. Illuminated wall signs shall not be permitted to extend more than twelve
(12) inches beyond the sign face or sign structure.

5. No wall sign affixed to a building, including sign support structure, may project beyond the
ends or top of the wall to which it is attached. On buildings existing on the effective date
of this Title, July 1, 2009, a parapet wall must not be constructed for the sole purpose of
increasing the allowable height of a wall sign.

6. Wall signs shall not cover windows, doors or architectural features.

7. For buildings in commercial use, wall signs should be located on the sign frieze, or the
portion of the building immediately above the first floor windows and below the second
floor window sills in the case of a two-story building. For buildings in office use that are
larger than two-stories, wall signs may be located on the top floor of the building no more



Village of Lincolnshire Title 12: Sign Control 
Revised 03/13/2017 Page 4 

than five (5) feet above the windows on the top floor and no portion of such wall sign shall 
extend above the roof line. 

8. Wall signs may be constructed of wood, metal or plastic.

9. Internally illuminated wall signs shall only consist of backlit/halo illumination and be
designed so light does not filter through the face of individually cut letter sets. In the
Corridor Commercial and Office/Industrial Sign Districts, internal illumination where light
is filtered through the face of individual letter sets is permitted under the following
conditions: a) the majority of gross floor area must be devoted to office use; b) the wall
sign shall only identify the office occupant; c) the building height must be a minimum of
forty (40) feet; and d) the wall sign shall be mounted a minimum of thirty-five (35) feet
above grade. Gooseneck reflectors are permitted on all wall signs provided the reflectors
concentrate the illumination upon the sign face only.

10. In no case shall any side wall or rear wall sign be permitted to contain any form of
illumination if said wall is adjacent to a residential district.

11. On multi-tenant commercial buildings, all wall signs must be located at a generally
uniform height on the building wall in similar proportion to one another. Wall signs
identifying individual tenant spaces in multi-tenant structures shall be centered within
each leaseable space unless otherwise approved by the Department of Community and
Economic Development. Signs within a multi-tenant commercial development must be of
a natural or white finish, however a logo or mark registered with the United States Patent
and Trademark Office shall not be limited by color. Where a single principal building is
devoted to two (2) or more business or commercial uses, the operator of each such use
may install a wall sign. The maximum area of each such sign shall be determined by the
proportionate share of the front façade, including doors and windows, of the principal
building occupied by each such use and applying such proportion to the total sign area
permitted for the front wall of the building.

12. On multi-tenant office buildings, one wall sign shall be permitted per building frontage,
provided signs have a minimum separation from the common edge of each building
frontage equal to ten feet (10’) or one third (1/3) of the length of the respective frontage,
whichever is lesser.

13. On multi-tenant industrial buildings, individual tenant wall signs shall be permitted only for
those tenant spaces that have individual entrances facing a public street or a parking lot.
Such signs must be located over or next to a corresponding entrance at a uniform height
on the building wall in similar proportion to one another. Regardless of whether the first
wall sign in any multi-tenant building is installed over the entry or next to the entry, that
same placement type shall be required for any additional signs in the same building. The
maximum area of each such sign shall be determined by the proportionate share of the
front façade, including doors and windows of the principal building occupied by each
tenant space and applying such proportion to the total sign area permitted for the front
wall of the building. Any two adjoining wall signs placed next to entrances shall be
located no closer than 1 foot (1’) from each other. Any two adjoining wall signs placed
above entrances shall be located no closer than 5 feet (5’) from each other.

14. Within a single-tenant commercial development, signs utilizing carved, etched, or raised
letters are not limited by color. Metal letters and logos shall have a non-reflective metal
surface.

15. Wall signs shall be attached to a building façade at a height of not less than eight (8) feet



Village of Lincolnshire Title 12: Sign Control 
Revised 03/13/2017 Page 5 

above any sidewalk, and may not extend over said thoroughfare and/or sidewalk. 

16. Consistency must be provided between ground sign lettering for individual tenants and
the corresponding lettering of wall signs on the façade of the building.

TABLE 3 
WALL SIGNS 

SIGN DISTRICT Maximum Sign Area 
Maximum 

Sign Length 

Maximum 
Height of 
Sign Face 

Maximum 
Height of 
Letters 

Maximum 
Height of 

Logo 

Downtown Sign 
District 

10% of the area of the 
wall to which the sign is 

attached 
15 ft. 2 ft. 18 in. 24 in. 

Corridor Commercial 
Sign District 

10% of the area of the 
wall to which the sign is 

attached 
18 ft. 3 ft. 24 in. 30 in. 

Office/Industrial Sign 
District 

10% of the area of the 
wall to which the sign is 

attached 
20 ft. 3 ft. 24 in. 30 in. 

Residential Sign 
District 
- Non-residential Use

10% of the area of the 
wall to which the sign is 

attached, 
 or 24 sq. ft.,  

whichever is less 

8 ft. 2 ft. 12 in. 18 in. 



Ground Signs and Landscaping Survey January 2019

1

Municipality

1. Do you require

landscaping at

the base of

ground signs in

commercial

zones?

a. If so, please attach

relevant code

requirements.

2. Do you conduct

regular inspections,

send letters/ reminders

to property owners to

ensure approved sign

and other landscaping

is maintained?

a. If so, how

often?

3. Do you have

restrictions

regarding the use of

frontlit/channel

illumination for

commercial wall

and ground signs?

Buffalo Grove Yes. See attached. No. Complaint Basis. No.

Grayslake Generally, no. Yes. As required. Yes.

Lake Zurich

All ground signs

must be

landscaped at the

base of the sign.

http://sterlingcodifiers.com/

codebook/index.php?book_

id=373&chapter_id=10014

9#s1183708  12-1-10

(F)(6) Ground Sign

Landscaping. Yes.

We conduct monthly 

inspections of

temporary/

permanent signs

around the Village.

Landscaping

inspections are

done per complaints

and on an as

needed basis during

the warmer months. Yes.

Libertyville

Yes, Section 11-

3.11.a stipulates

one (1) square foot

of landscaping is

required

immediately

adjacent to the sign 

base for every one

(1) square foot of

gross sign surface

area. See attached.

There is a final

inspection to ensure the

sign and landscaping

has been installed

correctly and is being

maintained. As other

permits are applied for, a

reminder may be sent to

the property owner that

the landscaping has not

been installed or

maintained.

Depends on the

situation.

Please refer to

Section 11-3.4 for

restrictions on

illuminating signs

within the Village.

DOCUMENT 3



Ground Signs and Landscaping Survey January 2019

2

Municipality

1. Do you require 

landscaping at 

the base of 

ground signs in 

commercial 

zones? 

a.  If so, please attach 

relevant code 

requirements. 

2. Do you conduct 

regular inspections, 

send letters/ reminders 

to property owners to 

ensure approved sign 

and other landscaping 

is maintained? 

a. If so, how 

often? 

3. Do you have 

restrictions 

regarding the use of 

frontlit/channel 

illumination for 

commercial wall 

and ground signs? 

Morton Grove Yes.

"Landscaped Beds: All 

ground monument and 

pylon signs shall be located 

in a landscaped bed that 

extends at least two feet 

(2') from the base on all 

sides. The landscape bed 

of a pylon sign shall be 

planted with shrubs at least 

three feet (3') in height at 

planting and may also 

include perennials, turf or 

other live ground cover." 

Chapter 10, Section 10-10-

7.G.5

Not regularly due to staff 

limitations. N/A. No.

Schaumburg Yes.

See attached 

154.136(E)(8) Yes. Annually. No.

Skokie

Landscaping is 

required in the CX 

Core Mixed-Use 

District only. 

Minimum of 12 inch raised 

bed no landscaping is 

specified. Yes. Every 1 to 2 years. No.

Streamwood Yes. See Section 11-10-3-2 E

After initial sign 

construction is approved 

via final inspections, then 

typically any inspections 

conducted thereafter are 

via code enforcement for 

non-compliance (i.e. 

significant amount of 

dead plantings or 

something is wrong with 

the sign itself).   

As needed.  See 

response to # 2 

above.  Yes.

Wheeling Yes.

https://library.municode.co

m/il/wheeling/codes/code_

of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT

21SI_CH21.06COINDI_21.

06.500PESI

Inspections are 

conducted at the 

completion the sign 

installation, whether 

permitting. Per Code, for 

signs installed in the 

winter, the property 

owner has until 1st day 

of June to complete. No.

https://library.municode.com/il/wheeling/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT21SI_CH21.06COINDI_21.06.500PESI
https://library.municode.com/il/wheeling/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT21SI_CH21.06COINDI_21.06.500PESI
https://library.municode.com/il/wheeling/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT21SI_CH21.06COINDI_21.06.500PESI
https://library.municode.com/il/wheeling/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT21SI_CH21.06COINDI_21.06.500PESI
https://library.municode.com/il/wheeling/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT21SI_CH21.06COINDI_21.06.500PESI


Ground Signs and Landscaping Survey January 2019

3

Municipality

Buffalo Grove

Grayslake

Lake Zurich

Libertyville

a. If so, please attach 

relevant code 

requirements. 

4. Do you prohibit 

any materials for 

ground signs? 

a. If so, please 

attach relevant 

code 

requirements. 

5. Do you allow 

digital menu 

boards for 

businesses with a 

drive-through?

a. If so, please attach 

relevant code 

requirements. 

No. Yes. See attached.

Only individual letters 

and logos may be 

internally illuminated, the 

background may not. 

Wall mounted internally 

illuminated box signs are 

prohibited. Size, location, 

and other requirements 

are per sign code.

Ground sign 

support structures 

must be made of 

decorative wood, 

stone, or brick. No.

12-1-7(E) Illumination 

Standards  

http://sterlingcodifiers.co

m/codebook/index.php?b

ook_id=373&chapter_id=

100149#s1183705   Pylon signs.

http://sterlingcodifier

s.com/codebook/ind

ex.php?book_id=37

3&chapter_id=1001

49#s1183706 12-1-

8 Prohibited Signs Yes.

12-1-10 (H) 

http://sterlingcodifiers.c

om/codebook/index.ph

p?book_id=373&chapt

er_id=100149#s11837

08

See attached.

No, however, all 

freestanding signs 

are required to be 

reviewed by the 

Appearance 

Review 

Commission and 

Village Board of 

Trustees. 

Yes, this has been 

differentiated 

internally from a 

digital (electronic) 

message board sign.



Ground Signs and Landscaping Survey January 2019

4

Municipality

Morton Grove

Schaumburg

Skokie

Streamwood

Wheeling

a. If so, please attach 

relevant code 

requirements. 

4. Do you prohibit 

any materials for 

ground signs? 

a. If so, please 

attach relevant 

code 

requirements. 

5. Do you allow 

digital menu 

boards for 

businesses with a 

drive-through?

a. If so, please attach 

relevant code 

requirements. 

N/A. No. N/A. Yes.

Drive throughs are 

covered by special use 

permits, as such 

specific regulations are 

within each ordinance. 

Usually, digital boards 

all allowed to replace 

previously approved 

signs.

No, but require 

signage to match 

the building. No.

Considering code 

amendment to permit 

when interior to lot.

No. Yes.

There is no specific 

ordinance section.

See Section 11-10-3-2 B 

3 e

If the specific 

material is not 

listed it is therefore 

prohibited.  Yes.

See Sections 11-10-23-

2 F & G

No. Yes.

https://library.municode

.com/il/wheeling/codes/

code_of_ordinances?n

odeId=TIT21SI_CH21.

06COINDI_21.06.500P

ESI

https://library.municode.com/il/wheeling/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT21SI_CH21.06COINDI_21.06.500PESI
https://library.municode.com/il/wheeling/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT21SI_CH21.06COINDI_21.06.500PESI
https://library.municode.com/il/wheeling/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT21SI_CH21.06COINDI_21.06.500PESI
https://library.municode.com/il/wheeling/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT21SI_CH21.06COINDI_21.06.500PESI
https://library.municode.com/il/wheeling/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT21SI_CH21.06COINDI_21.06.500PESI
https://library.municode.com/il/wheeling/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT21SI_CH21.06COINDI_21.06.500PESI


One Olde Half Day Road 
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069  
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov  

3 
2018_12_18_ARB_Minutes_Approved 

the installation of the new “car wash” building sign and the freestanding 
car wash menu board.  

The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 

3.2 Workshop regarding Text Amendments to Title 12, Sign Control, of the 
Lincolnshire Village Code, to Consolidate and Revise Regulations in the 
Downtown and Corridor Commercial Sign Districts for Permanent Signs (Village of 
Lincolnshire).  

AVM/CED Director Gilbertson introduced the item and provided background on 
the Downtown and Corridor and Commercial Corridor Sign Districts. He noted at 
the October 22, 2018 Committee of the Whole meeting, during consideration of the 
comprehensive Sign Code Revisions, the Village Board directed staff to research 
and evaluate wall and ground sign dimensions in both the Downtown and Corridor 
Commercial Sign Districts for standardization. AVM/CED Director Gilbertson 
presented three scenarios for the Architectural Review Board to consider: 

• Combine districts and apply all current corridor commercial requirements;

• Maintain districts and apply all (or certain) corridor commercial
requirements; or

• Combine districts and develop/apply new requirements.

Member McCall provided background on development of the Village Green 
Downtown Center noting at the original desire to attract retail and maintain its own 
unique identity as a downtown center; adding he thought it was reasonable at this 
time to combine the districts.  

Chair Kennerley asked if there was a way to streamline signage approvals; 
adding she does not see a need to distinguish signs in these districts. AVM/CED 
Director Gilbertson noted there are Village Board members in favor of keeping 
the current requirements while others see a need to combining the districts. 

Member Baskin said the Village should consider signage within broader context 
of other buildings design and landscaping.  Discussion ensued regarding sign 
visibility, size, and landscaping. Chair Kennerley noted the ARB has a desire to 
improve landscape requirements for signage including year-round color. 
AVM/CED Director Gilbertson provided copies of the current landscape 
requirements. There was general consensus of the Architectural Review Board to 
enhance landscape requirements for signage, where possible. 

AVM/CED Director Gilbertson stated staff would further review and report back 
to the Architectural Review Board the following elements: 

• General consensus to combine districts and consistent standards
across the Village using the Commercial Corridor Sign district
dimensions;

• Desire for monument signs in both districts;

DOCUMENT 4- DECEMBER 12, 2018 ARB 

tzozulya
Line



One Olde Half Day Road 
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069  
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov  

4 
2018_12_18_ARB_Minutes_Approved 

• Flexibility in signage materials while complementing building
architecture; and

• More stringent landscape standards.

3.3 Approval of 2019 Architectural Review Board Calendar and Meeting Schedule 
(Village of Lincolnshire).  

AVM/CED Director Gilbertson stated the Illinois Open Meetings Act requires all 
advisory boards to approve their meeting schedule and calendar prior to or at the 
first meeting of the year. AVM/CED Director Gilbertson reviewed the 2019 dates 
for the Architectural Review Board meeting schedule; noting the one change out 
of the ordinary is the October meeting. 

Member Santosuosso moved and Member Orzeske seconded approval of the 
2019 Architectural Review Board meeting dates as prepared by staff. 

The Motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 

4.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS (None) 

5.0 NEW BUSINESS (None) 

Member McCall inquired about potential proposals in 2019. AVM/CED Director 
Gilbertson said staff anticipated a proposal for The St. James in early or mid-2019 to 
come before the Architectural Review Board. 

6.0 CITIZEN COMMENTS (None) 

7.0 ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, Chair Kennerley adjourned the meeting at 8:09 p.m. 

 Respectfully Submitted, 
 Carol Lustig  
 Administrative Assistant,  
 Community & Economic Development Dept. 

tzozulya
Line


	parking_PACKET.pdf
	COMBINED_1_30_19.pdf
	E1-0 - SITE LIGHTING.pdf
	Sheets
	E0.01 - NOTES AND SYMBOLS
	E1.0 - SITE LIGHTING
	E1.01L - POWER FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 01 - AREA L
	E1.01Q - POWER FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 01 - AREA Q
	E1.02Q - POWER FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 02 - AREA Q
	E1.03Q - POWER FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 03 - AREA Q
	E1.04Q - POWER PLAN ROOF - AREA Q
	E2.01L - LIGHTING FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 01 - AREA L
	E2.01Q - LIGHTING FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 01 - AREA Q
	E2.02Q - LIGHTING FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 02 - AREA Q
	E2.03Q - LIGHTING FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 03 - AREA Q
	E4.02 - SCHEDULES
	E5.01 - DETAILS
	E5.02 - DETAILS
	E6.01Q - ENLARGED POWER FLOOR PLANS LEVEL 01 - AREA Q
	E6.02Q - ENLARGED POWER FLOOR PLANS LEVEL 02 - AREA Q
	E6.03Q - ENLARGED POWER FLOOR PLANS LEVEL 03 - AREA Q
	ED1.01L - POWER DEMOLITION FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 01 - AREA L
	ED1.01Q - POWER DEMOLITION FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 01 - AREA Q
	ED1.02Q - POWER DEMOLITION FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 02 - AREA Q
	ED1.03Q - POWER DEMOLITION FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 03 - AREA Q
	ED1.04Q - ED1.04Q - POWER DEMOLITION ROOF PLAN - AREA Q
	ED2.01L - LIGHTING DEMOLITION FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 01 - AREA L
	ED2.01Q - LIGHTING DEMOLITION FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 01 - AREA Q
	ED2.02Q - LIGHTING DEMOLITION FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 02 - AREA Q
	ED2.03Q - LIGHTING DEMOLITION FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 03 - AREA Q
	ED6.01Q - ENLARGED POWER DEMOLITION PLANS LEVEL 01 - AREA Q
	ED6.02Q - ENLARGED POWER DEMOLITION PLANS LEVEL 02 - AREA Q
	ED6.03Q - ENLARGED POWER DEMOLITION PLANS LEVEL 03 - AREA Q


	L100.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Landscape Plan




	realestate_PACKET.pdf
	C.  Awnings and Canopies
	D.  Blade Signs
	C.  Awnings and Canopies
	D.  Blade Signs
	C.  Awnings and Canopies
	D.  Blade Signs
	C.  Awnings and Canopies
	D.  Blade Signs
	C.  Awnings and Canopies
	D.  Blade Signs
	C.  Awnings and Canopies
	D.  Blade Signs
	RE_ New Lincolnshire Residential Real Estate Sign Code
	2019_01_14_COW_Residential_Real_Estate_Signage_Email)Community_Survey
	Sign email.pdf (p.1-2)
	Sign email1.pdf (p.3)


	PACKET.pdf
	Ground Signs and Landscaping Survey, Lincolnshire.pdf
	survey
	contact



	Return to Top: 


